
 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 
 

 

     

  

 

                                                                                                                                                                                          
  

AGENDA 
BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

Regular Board Meeting 
 Tuesday, January 10, 2017 

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 
 

 
   9:00 AM Call to Order  
   Approval of Minutes 

 December 20, 2017 Board Meeting 
 
   Review Agenda 

 
Consent Agenda  

       
Auditor 
a. Cancellation of Unclaimed Warrants  
b. Surplus of Personal Property    
Clerk 
c. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 106  
Commissioners  
d. Canvassing Board Appointment    
e. Non Bargaining General Increase of Wages for 2017 
f. 2017 Wage Increase Administrators, Managers & Assistant Managers 
g. Adoption of Flat Monthly Payments for  2017/2018 Juvenile Operating & Facilities Budget 
Facilities  
h. Payment Authorization to Moon Security Services Inc. for Fire & Burglar Alarm Services 
i. Notice of Lowest Bidder for Purchase of Office Furniture ~ CB 16-14   
Human Services 
j. Fifth Agreement Amendment w/Community Action Committee for Emergency Solutions 

Grant 
Information Technology 
k. Purchase of 2-Yr Autodesk Software Subscription Renewal from DLT Solutions, LLC 
l. Purchase of ArcGIS Desktop Licenses from Environmental Systems Research Institute Inc. 

for Public Works       
m. Support Contract for Cisco Equipment from CompuNet, Inc. 
n. Purchases of Computers/Printers/Scanners/Tablets/Licenses for Document Preservation  
Juvenile 
o. Amended Contract #1 w/Washington State Patrol for Criminal History Record Information 

Management  
p. Contract w/Tri-Cities Monitoring, Inc. for Armed Security Guard Services  
q. Contract w/City of Kennewick for Graffiti Abatement Program 

 

Jerome Delvin 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator             

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us
WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Text Box
To view items in detail, please click on the highlighted area



Agenda - Board of County Commissioners 
January 10, 2017 
Page 2 
 
 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190;   Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080,   Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 
 

 
Office of Public Defense 
r. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 136       
s. Establishing Cost Share Rate to Divide Costs of Juvenile Dependency Public Defense 

Contracts Between Benton & Franklin Counties for 2017    
t. Amended District Court Public Defense Contract w/J Briggs  
u. District Court Public Defense Contract w/H Villani 
v. District Court Public Defense Contract Termination w/Z Goytowski  
w. District Court Public Defense Contract Termination w/A Pechtel 
x. Amended Superior Court Public Defense Contract w/T Orosco 
Personnel      
y. Contract Termination w/Mail Finance, A Neopost Company     
z. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0503-101, Dept. 000 
aa. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 114     
Prosecuting Attorney       
bb. Collective Bargaining Agreement w/AFSCME AFL-CIO for Appraiser Employees  
Public Safety 
cc. Agreement w/Partners for Early Learning for Building Resilience through Family Support 
dd. Agreement w/Tri-Cities Chaplaincy for Step-Up Program      
Public Works 
ee. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0114-101, Dept. 000      
ff. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0101-101, Dept. 500    
gg. Adoption of Road Department Shop Rate      
hh. Equipment Maintenance Agreement w/Benton County Fire District #6 
ii. Payment Authorization to D&D Tri-Rivers Excavating, Inc. for Kennewick Parking Lot 
jj. Speed Limit Traffic Control on Certain County Roads 
Sheriff 
kk. Salary Request Statement        
ll. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 121 to Dept. 120     
mm. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 125 
nn. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0116-101, Dept. 000 
Sustainable Development 
oo. Appointments to the Hanford Advisory Board 

 
Scheduled Business  
 
Benton City Economic Development Update ~ A. Fyall & B. Baker  
 
Yakima Basin Water Legislation Discussion ~ A. Fyall, D. Olsen & M. Neilson  
 
Final Plat of Beverly Meadows Phase 2 – SUB 2016-006 ~ C. Posey  
 
Discussion of the Process for Appointing a District Court Judge ~ Commissioners   
 
Appointment of Interim Treasurer ~ Commissioners  
 Executive Session – Evaluating the Qualifications of Candidates for Appointment to 
                                              Elective Office    

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us
WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight



Agenda - Board of County Commissioners 
January 10, 2017 
Page 3 
 
 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190;   Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080,   Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 
 

 
Unscheduled Visitors 

   Other Business    

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us


 - 1 - 

MINUTES 
 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 

Regular Board Meeting 
Tuesday, December 20, 2016, 9:00 a.m. 

Commissioners’ Conference Room  
Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 
 
Present: Chairman Shon Small 
  Commissioner Jerome Delvin 
  Commissioner James Beaver 
  County Administrator David Sparks   
  Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie 
 
Benton County Employees Present During All or a Portion of the Meeting: Deputy 
Administrator Loretta Smith Kelty; Adam Fyall, Sustainable Development Manager; County 
Engineer Matt Rasmussen; Assistant County Engineer Robert Blain;  DPA Ryan Brown; Auditor 
Brenda Chilton; Clerk Josie Delvin; District Court Administrator Jacki Lahtinen; Assessor Bill 
Spencer; Treasurer Duane Davidson;  Jerrod MacPherson, Assistant Planning Manager; Shyanne 
Faulconer, Community Programs/PR;  Financial Analyst Paul Schut; Judge Terry Tanner, Greg 
Wendt, Principal Planner; IT Manager Teri Holmes; GIS Manager Mary Phillips. 
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
The Minutes of December 13, 2016 were approved.   
 
Review Agenda 
 
The Board added “aa” (Salary Request Statement) to the consent agenda.   
 
The Board added an Executive Session to discuss the performance of a public employee. 
 
Consent Agenda 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved to approve the consent agenda items “a” through “z”, 
adding “aa” (Salary Request Statement). Commissioner Beaver seconded and upon vote, the Board 
approved the following: 
 
Assessor 

a. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 101 
Auditor 

b. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 102    
Commissioners  

c. Step Increase Approval Request  



 - 2 - 

d. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, From Dept. 115 to Dept. 107   
e. Appointment of C Obrien to the Benton County Weed District No. 1  

District Court   
f. Agreement w/State of WA Administrative Office of the Courts    
g. Contract w/A Uvalle for Interpreter Services    
h. Contract w/M Rudeen for Interpreter Services 
i. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 111 
j. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0131-101, Dept. 000 

Facilities    
k. Notice of Award for OPD/PA TI Project to Booth & Sons Construction, Inc.  
l. Contract w/Superior Maintenance Solutions, Inc. for Snow Removal  

Information Technologies 
m. Purchase of Applications & Services from IWorq Systems for Public Works   
n. Purchase of CallMaker & CallReader Software from Techline Communications for Clerk’s 

Office 
Office of Public Defense 

o. Superior Court Public Defense Services Agreement w/M Iaria  
p. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 136  

Parks  
q. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0110-102, Dept. 000 

Personnel 
r. Contract w/Castlebranch, Inc. for Employment  Screening/Background Checks 
s. Appointment of Paynewest Insurance as Broker/Agent for Insurance Policies and Bonds 

Prosecuting Attorney   
t. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 117 
u. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 117, Rescinding Resolution 2016-948 

Public Safety 
v.  Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0148-101. Dept. 136   

Public Works 
w. Agreement w/City of Kennewick for Bob Olson Parkway Project   
x. Purchase of Four Ford Pickups from Corwin Ford     

Sheriff 
y. Salary Request Statement   
z. Contract Modification w/US Department of Energy for Law Enforcement Services 

Planning 
aa. Salary Request Statement 

 
Public Hearing – Adoption of Final 2017-2018 Budget 
 
Paul Schut said the budget was advertised as required and posted on the main web page for the 
public to review.   
 
Commissioner Delvin commented that he received a message to be careful with the budget because 
if the Columbia Generating Station closed, Benton County would be stuck with the bill. 
 
As there was no one present to testify, public testimony was closed. 



 - 3 - 

MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to adopt the final 2017-2018 Benton County Budgets 
as presented.  Commissioner Delvin seconded.   
 
Discussion 
 
The Board thanked David Sparks, Loretta Smith Kelty, Paul Shut and others that worked on 
balancing the budget.   
 
Upon vote, the motion carried unanimously.   
 
Unscheduled Visitors 
 
Paul Schut presented two line item transfers for the Commissioners’ office and Facilities 
Department for the Board’s approval.   
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve the Line Item Transfer from Current 
Expense Fund Dept. 115 and Dept. 107 to Dept. 107, Rescinding Resolution 2016-1010.  
Commissioner Delvin seconded and upon vote, the motion carried. 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve the Line Item Transfer from Current 
Expense Fund Dept. 115 to Dept. 110, Rescinding Resolution 2016-1014.  Commissioner Delvin 
seconded and upon vote, the motion carried. 
 
Judge Terry Tanner expressed appreciation on behalf of District Court for the budget approval.  
Additionally, he said they would be down a judge in 2017 and they were available to assist in 
expediting the process so they could get back up to full steam.   
 
Mr. Sparks stated they had a process where they selected a committee and invited the cities to join 
and come up with three names for the Board to appoint a new judge and they just needed direction 
from the Board.   
 
Commissioner Delvin requested the item be put on the January 10, 2017 agenda for the Board to 
review. 
 
Lisa Small via/videoconference presented Amendment No. 5 for the contract with DOC for jail 
bed space.  She said the amendment would extend the contract from January 1, 2017 to June 30, 
2017 to allow them time to negotiate the terms of a new contract.   
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve the Resolution approving Amendment No. 
5 to the Washington State Department of Corrections Agreement for jail bed space at the Benton 
County Jail.  Commissioner Delvin seconded and upon vote, the motion carried. 
 
Other Business 
 
Treasurer Duane Davidson said the Board would need to appoint an Interim Treasurer and he 
wanted to suggest Kirsten Yniguez.  She had worked for the Treasurer’s office for 8 years, was a 



 - 4 - 

foreclosure deputy for a number of years, resided in Benton County and was well versed in tax 
collection.  Additionally, they were going through a conversion and she would be a good resource.   
 
The Board agreed to put the appointment for Interim Treasurer on the January 10, 2017 agenda.   
 
Jarrod MacPherson, Planning introduced Greg Wendt as newest member to the Benton County 
Planning Team. 
 
Commissioner Delvin said he forwarded the email he received regarding the proposal from Gordon 
Thomas Honeywell about getting some assistance to go after funding.  He said they had a new 
person on board that had worked on the State House of Representative capital budget committee 
and it might be good to use her expertise to gain state money for the two projects (jail mental health 
wing and juvenile). 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to enter into an agreement as presented (no amount 
specified).   Commissioner Delvin seconded. 
 
Discussion 
 
Commissioner Delvin said he would work with David Sparks, Loretta Smith Kelty and Ryan 
Brown to figure out how they would move forward with this.   
 
Upon vote, the motion carried.   
 
Chairman Small said he wanted to look at the jail issue during the beginning of the year.  
Commissioner Delvin said he had conversations with CEO’s of the hospitals and publisher of Tri-
City Herald and they were interested because it affected their operations.  With a facility here it 
could defer more people out of the jail and he would keep working the individuals to pursue that.   
 
The Board briefly recessed, reconvening at 9:35 a.m.  
 
Executive Session – Performance of Public Employee 
 
The Board went to into executive session at 9:36 for approximately five minutes to discuss the 
performance of a public employee.  Also present were David Sparks, Loretta Smith Kelty and 
Cami McKenzie.  The Board came out at 9:45 a.m.  No decisions were made.   
 
Payroll 
 
Check Date: 12/15/2016 
 
Payroll Draw Checks 
Warrant #: 240219 
Direct Deposit #: 120087-120272 
Total all funds: $112,768.00 
 



 - 5 - 

Payroll Deductions/Transfers 
Taxes #: 101161216 
Total all funds: $36,178.56 
 
Total amounts approved by fund can be reviewed in the Benton County Auditor’s Office. 
 
Claim for Damages 
 
CC 2016-18: Received on December 16, 2016 from Austyn Schlosser 
 
Resolutions 
 
2016-1039: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 101 
2016-1040: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 102    
2016-1041: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, From Dept. 115 to Dept. 107   
2016-1042: Appointment of C Obrien to the Benton County Weed District No. 1  
2016-1043: Agreement w/State of WA Administrative Office of the Courts    
2016-1044: Contract w/A Uvalle for Interpreter Services    
2016-1045: Contract w/M Rudeen for Interpreter Services 
2016-1046: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 111 
2016-1047: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0131-101, Dept. 000 
2016-1048: Notice of Award for OPD/PA TI Project to Booth & Sons Construction, Inc.  
2016-1049: Contract w/Superior Maintenance Solutions, Inc. for Snow Removal  
2016-1050:      Purchase of Applications & Services from IWorq Systems for Public Works   
2016-1051:      Purchase of CallMaker & CallReader Software from Techline Communications for  
                        Clerk’s Office  
2016-1052: Superior Court Public Defense Services Agreement w/M Iaria  
2016-1053: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 136  
2016-1054: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0110-102, Dept. 000 
2016-1055: Contract w/Castlebranch, Inc. for Employment Screening/Background Checks 
2016-1056: Appointment of Paynewest Insurance as Broker/Agent for Insurance Policies and 

Bonds 
2016-1057: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 117 
2016-1058: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 117, Rescinding Resolution 2016-

948 
2016-1059: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0148-101. Dept. 136   
2016-1060: Agreement w/City of Kennewick for Bob Olson Parkway Project   
2016-1061:      Purchase of Four Ford Pickups from Corwin Ford     
2016-1062: Contract Modification w/US Department of Energy for Law Enforcement Services 
2016-1063: Adopting the Final 2017-2018 Benton County Budgets 
2016-1064: Transfer of Funds Within Current Expense 0000-101 Dept. 115 To Dept. 107 - 

Rescinding Resolution 2016-1010 
2016-1065: Transfer of Funds Within Current Expense Fund 0000-101 Non Department 115 

To Dept. 110 - Rescinding Resolution 2016-1014 
2016-1066: Authorizing Amendment No. 5 to the Washington Statement Department of 

Corrections Agreement No. K9420 for Jail Bed Space at the Benton County Jail 



 - 6 - 

 
There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at approximately 9:45 
a.m.   
 
_______________________________   ______________________________ 
Clerk of the Board      Chairman 
 



 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: 01/10/17        
Subject: Cancel Old 

Warrants   
Prepared by:    Rosie Sparks  
Reviewed by: Van Pettey         

   

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _____ 
Pass Resolution  __X___  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
Consent Agenda __X___ 
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

  

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Pursuant to RCW 36.22.100 “Registered or interest bearing county warrants not presented within one year 
of the date of their call, and all other county warrants not presented within one year of the date of their issue 
shall be canceled by the legislative authority of the county and the auditor and treasurer of the county shall 
cancel all record of such warrants, so as to leave the funds as if such warrants had never been drawn”.   
 
 
 
 
 
 

SUMMARY 
 
This resolution identifies the warrants still outstanding from 2015 which need to be canceled. 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Pass the resolution. 
 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
$4,868.11 
 
 
 
 

MOTION 
 
Consent Agenda 
 
 
 

WEH
Text Box
a. Cancellation of Unclaimed Warrants



RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, 
WASHINGTON 

 
IN THE MATTER OF CANCELLATION OF UNCLAIMED WARRANTS AS SET 
FORTH IN RCW 36.22.100 
 
WHEREAS, RCW 36.22.100, Cancellation of Unclaimed Warrants, specifies in part 
“…warrants not presented within one year of the date of their issue shall be cancelled 
by the legislative authority of the county…”; and 
 
WHEREAS, certain warrants have not been presented for payment within one year of 
the date of their issue, from the following funds: 
 

Name of Fund   Number  Outstanding Balance 
 
Current Expense 0000-101 $4,235.93 
Human Services 0108-101 632.18 
             
 Total $4,868.11 

 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Benton County Commissioners that all outstanding 
warrants issued on or before December 31, 2015, are hereby canceled as of December 
31, 2016.  The Auditor and Treasurer of Benton County are instructed to cancel all 
record of such warrants, so as to leave the funds as though such warrants had never 
been drawn.   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the Auditor of Benton County is instructed to exclude 
outstanding warrants that are redeemed after the preparation, but before the passage of 
this resolution and all outstanding warrants that are requested in writing by the issuing 
departments to remain outstanding. 
 
Dated this _________day of _____________________, 20__ __. 
 
       

_______________________________________ 
 Chairman of the Board 
 

_______________________________________ 
 Member 
 

_______________________________________ 
 Member 
       

Constituting the Board of County 
Commissioners of Benton County, 
Washington  

Attest: ___________________________ 
Clerk of the Board 

 
Org:  Commissioners 
cc:  Auditor, Treasurer, Human Services, Prosecuting Attorney, Personnel 
                         Page 1 of 6 



Check  Date Micro # Amount Vendor Name

23-Jan-15 115211 13.72 EVAN JONES

23-Jan-15 115358 10.00 ANNA BORGHERIU

23-Jan-15 115388 10.00 KELLI FARLEY

13-Feb-15 116448 15.46 DAVID BEAVER

13-Feb-15 116472 19.11 DUSTIN CHAVEZ

13-Feb-15 116475 14.24 ALISON COPE 

13-Feb-15 116516 22.91 JANA GORDON

13-Feb-15 116517 54.60 ASHLEY GRAGG

13-Feb-15 116555 32.20 JANELL JOHNSON

13-Feb-15 116571 17.44 STEPHANIE MACROBERTS

13-Feb-15 116599 12.74 KIMBERLY PALMER

13-Feb-15 116609 13.99 MARIO RAMIREZ

13-Feb-15 116644 21.63 CHERIE SONODA

13-Feb-15 116680 19.36 EILEEN YOKUDA

27-Feb-15 117225 140.13 STEPHANIE BUTTON

27-Feb-15 117306 12.23 JAY LA BELLE

27-Feb-15 117315 27.24 LON MARTIN

27-Feb-15 117326 10.00 DAVID MURLEY

27-Feb-15 117349 33.36 EDDIE SCHUMAN

20-Mar-15 118447 19.20 JEFFRY CHEADLE

20-Mar-15 118477 45.08 PRESTON HART

20-Mar-15 118485 13.82 CHASE HOWLAND

20-Mar-15 118506 16.90 BROCK MARSTON

20-Mar-15 118519 11.61 ANDREW MOORE

20-Mar-15 118530 32.45 CHARLENE RADER

20-Mar-15 118544 10.00 NIKI SCHERING

03-Apr-15 119499 12.96 ANGELA BUNYON

03-Apr-15 119518 19.28 ALEXIS EARL

03-Apr-15 119520 12.56 CRAIG ERDMAN

03-Apr-15 119541 50.41 MELISSA JENSEN

03-Apr-15 119555 12.40 NICHOLAS MILESON

03-Apr-15 119566 26.96 LESLIE PARKS-BEYER

03-Apr-15 119608 12.81 ANTHONY UBELHOR

03-Apr-15 119611 18.57 NATALIE WALLIS

03-Apr-15 119684 10.00 CORD HENRY

17-Apr-15 120035 12.96 CRAIG KNAUSS

17-Apr-15 120190 10.00 FRANK KATZ

01-May-15 120989 19.56 CYNTHIA CLEMENT

01-May-15 121014 14.01 LINDA HAGEMAN

01-May-15 121016 17.72 MICHAEL HILL

01-May-15 121044 12.20 DEBORAH PIERCE

01-May-15 121061 15.93 MANDY WILLIAMS

15-May-15 121496 21.89 CRAIG CORBETT

Stale Dated Outstanding Warrants 12/31/2015
Benton County Current Expense

Page 2 of 6



Check  Date Micro # Amount Vendor Name

Stale Dated Outstanding Warrants 12/31/2015
Benton County Current Expense

15-May-15 121505 14.21 BATOOL DILLSI

15-May-15 121517 14.81 MARK FISHER

15-May-15 121536 21.21 KAREN HOPKINS

15-May-15 121545 19.63 SCOTT LEMBURG

15-May-15 121587 17.38 NICHOLAS SPINATO

22-May-15 122150 17.82 ALAN AUNSPAUGH

22-May-15 122165 17.12 TOBY BILLINGS

22-May-15 122190 20.47 GAVIN CREACH

22-May-15 122257 17.06 DENISE MEAD

22-May-15 122293 13.48 SCOTT RODGERS

22-May-15 122296 43.24 ANDREW SAKOTA

22-May-15 122309 12.65 HEART SOK

22-May-15 122349 15.18 BRIAN ZORN

19-Jun-15 123463 10.00 MELISSA CARGILL

22-Jun-15 123629 14.78 BRANDON MILAM

02-Jul-15 124208 11.86 CLIFFORD ADAIR

02-Jul-15 124260 25.48 NICHOLAS DAVIS

02-Jul-15 124310 17.38 CASEY HAWKINS

02-Jul-15 124313 17.48 JOHN HICKMAN

02-Jul-15 124320 16.85 STEFANIE HUWE

02-Jul-15 124408 32.17 MARY SULLIVAN

02-Jul-15 124434 17.23 SUSAN WHALEN

17-Jul-15 124853 12.67 HEIDI ERICKSON

17-Jul-15 124865 61.52 RICHARD GRIFFIN

17-Jul-15 124875 22.93 BETHANY HILDRETH

17-Jul-15 124888 19.15 STEVE KUHN

17-Jul-15 124890 28.02 ROCHELE LANDYMORE

17-Jul-15 124907 36.84 CAMERON PARKER

17-Jul-15 124912 14.36 ROBERT PRINGLE

17-Jul-15 124942 28.40 SHEA WASHBURN

31-Jul-15 125673 35.30 LEAH ARRIGO

31-Jul-15 125676 27.36 WENDY BARRAZA

31-Jul-15 125688 16.21 LUISA CAMPBELL

31-Jul-15 125694 17.52 DEVON DANIEL

31-Jul-15 125738 12.88 DAVID LAW

31-Jul-15 125741 13.89 MARISA LITZENBERGER

31-Jul-15 125742 13.89 TIMOTHY LITZENBERGER

31-Jul-15 125771 23.39 IRENE RAY

31-Jul-15 125805 15.69 MICHAEL WARNER

14-Aug-15 126221 17.85 NICOLE BOLTEN

14-Aug-15 126223 13.43 HALEY BORING

14-Aug-15 126225 11.86 BRENDA BRIDWELL

14-Aug-15 126264 34.16 KEVIN GREAGER

Page 3 of 6



Check  Date Micro # Amount Vendor Name

Stale Dated Outstanding Warrants 12/31/2015
Benton County Current Expense

14-Aug-15 126282 25.69 MICHELLE JACKSON

14-Aug-15 126284 55.38 ELI JAKEMAN

14-Aug-15 126295 16.35 MARY LE COMPTE

14-Aug-15 126299 28.86 STEPHANIE LYON-RAU

14-Aug-15 126301 12.75 CHADRICK MANSFIELD

14-Aug-15 126314 16.85 BENJAMIN MCNARY

14-Aug-15 126322 17.44 KYLE NELSON

14-Aug-15 126343 303.10 BRIAN SCHROM

14-Aug-15 126360 22.90 ARIEL TEETERS

14-Aug-15 126376 10.00 SHAUNA ADAMS

14-Aug-15 126410 11.15 RYAN DAVIES

14-Aug-15 126437 15.75 SHELLEY GOLDSTEIN

14-Aug-15 126453 10.00 AMANDA HOWARD

14-Aug-15 126457 30.70 ALENA INMAN

14-Aug-15 126461 10.00 DEREK JOHNSON

14-Aug-15 126463 10.00 TAWNEY JOHNSON

14-Aug-15 126464 10.00 SHAWN JONES

14-Aug-15 126518 102.00 ROY SIMMS

14-Aug-15 126534 10.00 JULIE TRENT

14-Aug-15 126543 10.00 STEVE WAITE

21-Aug-15 126676 14.06 HANS CARMAN

21-Aug-15 126681 5.77 GRANT DEJONGH

21-Aug-15 126683 14.38 LEVI ESLINGER

21-Aug-15 126690 16.37 REBECCA GOLTZ

21-Aug-15 126711 11.86 MIKAYLA LYNCH

21-Aug-15 126727 24.24 GEORGE REDDICK

21-Aug-15 126746 21.59 SHANA WILLETT

21-Aug-15 126747 17.73 MARY ZARATE

28-Aug-15 127217 10.00 RIVER MITCHELL

28-Aug-15 127241 10.00 CHRISTOPHER PEREZ

04-Sep-15 127329 19.38 JOSEPH BOMBINO

04-Sep-15 127376 16.90 BLAIR HOPKINS

04-Sep-15 127378 18.88 TANYA HUFFMAN

04-Sep-15 127392 12.45 STEVE LING

04-Sep-15 127407 28.52 NICOLE OVERMAN

04-Sep-15 127409 29.88 TARA PAYNE

04-Sep-15 127420 17.51 CASSIE SCHERER

04-Sep-15 127446 14.09 MICHAEL WILSON

18-Sep-15 127825 23.79 CARA HUBBARD

18-Sep-15 127992 15.75 CHANDLER RENO

18-Sep-15 128014 15.75 ASHLYNN TATE

18-Sep-15 128015 10.00 KAYLEE TATE

Page 4 of 6



Check  Date Micro # Amount Vendor Name

Stale Dated Outstanding Warrants 12/31/2015
Benton County Current Expense

25-Sep-15 128444 10.00 DANNIELA MADGRIGAL

01-Oct-15 128530 13.23 KYLE BAER

01-Oct-15 128586 18.31 BRICE FINCE

01-Oct-15 128589 18.27 LISA FREEMAN

01-Oct-15 128607 17.23 JOANNA HART

01-Oct-15 128632 11.24 STACEY KEYS 

01-Oct-15 128671 13.09 CHRISTOPHER NYGAARD

01-Oct-15 128678 23.13 JANICE PETERSON

01-Oct-15 128690 13.21 ROSA ROMERO

01-Oct-15 128709 13.65 PATRICK SWANN

16-Oct-15 129175 10.00 MARIANGEL CRUZ

16-Oct-15 129254 13.45 MARIS ROCHE

23-Oct-15 129429 15.34 MATTHEW BRIGHTON

23-Oct-15 129438 30.27 KARIN COOK

23-Oct-15 129445 33.58 KYLE DICKMAN

23-Oct-15 129449 15.51 CAYLA FEENEY

23-Oct-15 129457 18.49 CHRISTINA GIBSON

23-Oct-15 129460 15.09 DANE GUSTAFSON

23-Oct-15 129461 15.69 LAURA HANKS

23-Oct-15 129479 20.05 SEAN KROPLA

23-Oct-15 129511 23.80 DAVID ROMINE

23-Oct-15 129517 12.19 STEVE SHOCKLEY

23-Oct-15 129521 17.31 MARY SURPLUS

30-Oct-15 129974 11.06 LUZ MARGARITA CORIA 

30-Oct-15 130017 11.91 RAFAEL SILVA MARTINEZ

30-Oct-15 130062 11.08 MARCO RODRIGUEZ

30-Oct-15 130069 11.07 JUSTIN TYME SILER

30-Oct-15 130092 12.26 MARIA JAIMES ZAMORA

20-Nov-15 130704 25.24 SAMANTHA FERRY

20-Nov-15 130714 36.70 DARLENE GOODALL

20-Nov-15 130729 94.22 FREDERICK HENNING

20-Nov-15 130732 12.75 RANDAL HOGE

20-Nov-15 130738 34.82 KEVIN JAEGEL

20-Nov-15 130769 12.69 BRIAN MCCARTHNEY

20-Nov-15 130815 14.45 JENNIFER SANDS

20-Nov-15 130818 40.48 PEGGY SATKO

20-Nov-15 130829 22.52 HEIDI SNYDER

20-Nov-15 130834 29.86 DEBRA STRONG

20-Nov-15 130836 15.64 SARA THOMAS

03-Dec-15 131425 67.29 MONTE DUNN

03-Dec-15 131434 19.14 SHELLY FINLEY

03-Dec-15 131474 14.99 KRISTINE KAZDA

Page 5 of 6



Check  Date Micro # Amount Vendor Name

Stale Dated Outstanding Warrants 12/31/2015
Benton County Current Expense

03-Dec-15 131482 14.58 NICHOLAS LAMBDIN

03-Dec-15 131496 11.91 CINDY MILLER

03-Dec-15 131514 29.72 MAURYA OOLEY

03-Dec-15 131540 13.88 AARON SANCHEZ

03-Dec-15 131542 13.98 DONALD SCHMID

03-Dec-15 131568 11.37 KENDELL TEMPLETON

31-Dec-15 132498 13.30 PHILIP BARTLEY

31-Dec-15 132529 23.96 TOM CLOUSE

31-Dec-15 132555 15.06 DAWN FINE

31-Dec-15 132569 16.76 JUAN GARCIA

31-Dec-15 132650 12.99 JOHN MICHAELIS

31-Dec-15 132681 12.55 LAUREL POFFENROTH

31-Dec-15 132721 52.02 COREY STROPE

31-Dec-15 132729 19.04 PATRICIA TALMAGE

31-Dec-15 132740 17.50 JAMES VANDYKEN

31-Dec-15 132741 13.50 DAVID VONGHALATH

31-Dec-15 132759 27.76 GERALD WILSON

31-Dec-15 132890 19.20 MARTIN GARCIA

31-Dec-15 132892 44.50 DAVID GOMEZ

31-Dec-15 132964 10.00 ROBERT ROWETT

31-Dec-15 132997 19.78 OMAR VARGAS

sub‐total $4,235.93

HUMAN SERVICES

13-Feb-15 116766 43.18 GORDON CABLE

27-Feb-15 117436 589.00 FITT 513 LLC

sub‐total $632.18

TOTAL $4,868.11

Page 6 of 6



A. Coverdell 

 
  
BACKGROUND INFORMATION  

 

As outlined in Resolution 07-752, County departments request supply and equipment 

items be declared surplus and be disposed of. 

 

 

SUMMARY  

The Personal Property Manager has determined that the personal property on the attached 

exhibit can be declared surplus and disposed of accordingly.  

 
  

AGENDA/WORKSHOP ITEM TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED         

Meeting Date: January 10, 2017 Execute Contract      Consent Agenda x    

Subject: 

Declaration of Surplus 

Property  Pass Resolution  x   Public Hearing     

   Pass Ordinance      1st Discussion     

By: A. Coverdell Pass Motion      2nd Discussion     

Reviewed By: B. Chilton/V. Pettey Other      Other      

                    

WEH
Text Box
b. Surplus of Personal Property



A. Coverdell 

RESOLUTION 
 

 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY POLICY, RE: SURPLUS OF PERSONAL PROPERTY IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH RESOLUTION 07-752 
 
 
WHEREAS, The Benton County Auditor is the Personal Property Manager; and 
 
WHEREAS, various departments have identified supply items and equipment which have become 
obsolete; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of the Personal Property Manager that the listed property be 
declared surplus; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board finds it to be in the best interest of the citizens of Benton County to surplus 
antiquated and obsolete property; NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, that based on the recommendation of the Personal Property Manager and as 
supported by the various departments, the listed property in Attachment A is hereby determined to be 
surplus and will be held for online auction, the next surplus sale, disposed of as waste, or recycled 
depending on final condition assessment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dated this _________day of _____________________, 2017. 
 
       

_______________________________________ 
      Chairman of the Board 
 

_______________________________________ 
      Member 
 

_______________________________________ 
      Member  

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners of 
Benton County, Washington  

 
Attest: ___________________________ 

Clerk of the Board    
 

  
  



A. Coverdell 

ATTACHMENT A 
 
1997 Ford Taurus Station Wagon 
VIN 1FA3P57U6VA126272 
Treasurer O&M Fund 
 
18 reception chairs (red) 
4 Reception chairs (green) 
Auditor 
 
Bookshelf 
Auditor  
 
Comb binding machine (Public Works) 
County Tag 01619  
Road tag 00702 
 

Type Tag Reason Serial Number Make Description 

monitor 11774 Broken MX64635932 HP 1024 14" 

monitor 16292 Broken CN-OJ6642-71618-5CG-AG9D Dell 1704FPV 17" LCD 

monitor 18844 Broken CN-O6H6FX-74445-217-573L Dell P2210 22" LCD 

monitor 18845 Broken CN-O6H6FX-74445-217-542L Dell P2210 22" LCD 

net 19747 Broken Q2HD-4JKL-W4YC Meraki MR26 Cloud Managed Access Point 

printer 15172 Broken  HP DJ5550 

printer 19044 Broken CN24B2920C HP OfficeJet 6600 H711a 

scanner 18038 Broken 9891 Fujitsu fi-6240 

scanner 19817 Broken 730030 Fujitsu fi-6130z 

monitor 19346  Z42VHCHB600011 Samsung Samsung SyncMaster 40" LCD 

 



WEH
Text Box
c. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 106







WEH
Text Box
d. Canvassing Board Appointment



WEH
Text Box
e. Non Bargaining General Increase of Wages for 2017





WEH
Text Box
f. 2017 Wage Increase Administrators, Managers & Assistant Managers







 

cc: Commissioners, Juvenile, Auditor, Treasurer  Hottell 

BENTON COUNTY RESOLUTION NO. _______ 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
IN THE MATTER OF ADOPTING BENTON COUNTY FLAT MONTHLY PAYMENTS 
FOR THE 2017-2018 BENTON AND FRANKLIN JUVENILE CENTER OPERATIONS 
AND FACILITIES BUDGET 
 
WHEREAS, the Boards of Benton and Franklin County Commissioners approved Joint 
Resolution Benton County 2016-942 and Franklin County 2016-436, a Memorandum of 
Understanding regarding the allocation of Juvenile Center operations and facilities costs; and 
 
WHEREAS, the 2017-2018 Benton and Franklin Juvenile Center Operations Budget was 
submitted in the amount of $10,557,162. Based upon the ratio of each county’s juvenile 
population averaged over five year periods per the Office of Financial Management data tables 
attached, Benton County is now responsible for $6,834,707 or 64.74% effective January 1, 2017; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the 2017-2018 Benton and Franklin Juvenile Center Facilities Budget was 
submitted in the amount of $366,927. Based upon Joint Resolution Benton County 2016-942 and 
Franklin County 2016-436, Benton County is now responsible for $264,187 or 72% effective 
January 1, 2017; and 
 
WHEREAS, the combined total for the 2017-2018 Benton and Franklin Juvenile Center 
Operations and Facilities Budget is $10,942,089, Benton County is responsible for a total of 
$7,098,894; NOW, THEREFORE, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, to maintain adequate cash flow in the Benton and Franklin Juvenile Center 
Fund, starting January 2017, Benton County will be responsible for a flat monthly payment in the 
amount of $295,787 for the 2017-2018 Benton and Franklin Juvenile Center Operations and 
Facilities Budget; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, by the Board of Commissioners of Benton County that the first 
flat monthly operating transfer to the 2017-2018 Benton and Franklin Juvenile Center Fund 
Budget shall occur no later than March 20, 2017 for January, February, and March and no later 
than the 1st working day of each month thereafter in the amount of $295,787 is approved; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, no later than April 2018, the Benton County Commissioners 
will receive a final 2017 invoice itemizing actual expenditures and any adjustments necessary 
based on actual expenditures; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, no later than April 2019, the Benton County Commissioners 
will receive a final 2018 invoice itemizing actual expenditures and any adjustments necessary 
based on actual expenditures. 

WEH
Text Box
g. Adoption of Flat Monthly Payments for 2017/2018 Juvenile Operating & Facilities Budget



 

cc: Commissioners, Juvenile, Auditor, Treasurer  Hottell 

Dated this . . . . . . . day of . . . . . . . . . . ., 2017   
 
BENTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS   
 
 
 
___________________________________________   
Chairman of the Board       
 
 
____________________________________ 
Chairman Pro Tem      
 
 
___________________________________________   
Member       
 
Constituting the Board of County     
Commissioners of Benton County,     
Washington       
 
ATTEST :       
 
________________________________________________  
Clerk of the Board      



Juvenile Center Calculation Per Joint Resolution BC 2016-942 and FC 2016-436

Source: Juvenile Youth-At-Risk Population 10-17

Numbers 2011 through 2014 already established by prior resolutions

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Benton County 21,973         21,797         21,590      21,338      20,915      

Franklin County 12,367         12,205         11,773      11,345      10,915      

34,340         34,002         33,363      32,683      31,830      

Rolling Average Benton County 21,523         

Rolling Average Franklin County 11,721         

33,244         

Benton County 64.74%

Franklin County 35.26%

http://www.ofm.wa.gov/pop/asr/default.asp


WEH
Text Box
h. Payment Authorization to Moon Security Services Inc. for Fire & Burglar Alarm Services





RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF PROVIDING NOTICE OF THE LOWEST RESPONSIBLE BIDDER FOR THE 
PURCHASE OF OFFICE FURNITURE (CB 16-14) 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Benton County Commissioners solicited bids for the procurement of 
office furniture for the WSU/Justice Center Remodel per Resolution 2016-951; and 
 
WHEREAS, representatives of the Benton County Commissioners’ Office received and opened 
one bid on December 22, 2016 as provided in the invitation to bid; and 
 
WHEREAS, the following bid was received: 

Brutzmans Inc., Richland, WA - $147,921.34; and 
 
WHEREAS, the representatives of the Benton County Commissioners’ Office reviewed the bid 
proposal and recommend awarding the Vendor Purchasing Agreement to Brutzmans Inc.; NOW, 
THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington 
hereby has deemed Brutzmans Inc. to be the lowest responsible bidder for the purchase of office 
furniture and shall be required to enter into an Agreement with Benton County in accordance 
with its bid and in the form of Exhibit D to the Office Furniture Invitation for Bid CB 16-14 within 
ten (10) days of this notice. 
 
Dated this _____________ day of __________________, 2017. 
 

 ___________________________                
 Chairman of the Board 

  
 ___________________________              

 Member 
 

 ___________________________                
 Member 

  
 Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington 

Attest....................................................... 
                    Clerk of the Board  
 

WEH
Text Box
i. Notice of Lowest Bidder for Purchase of Office Furniture ~ CB 16-14



WEH
Text Box
j. Fifth Agreement Amendment w/Community Action Committee for Emergency Solutions Grant











WEH
Text Box
k. Purchase of 2-Yr Autodesk Software Subscription Renewal from DLT Solutions, LLC









WEH
Text Box
l. Purchase of ArcGIS Desktop Licenses from Environmental Systems Research Institute Inc.for Public Works













  
BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 

When we replaced our entire voice and data network with Cisco equipment it was determined 
that the best way to protect our investment was by securing a Cisco SmartNet Support contract.  
Cisco SmartNet Service helps Information Technology resolve network issues faster with expert technical 
support, flexible hardware coverage, and access to Cisco engineers.   

      Cerium Networks submitted a quote that is actually lower than the quote received from CompuNet.  
Because of recent service and performance factors, Information Technology considering all factors prefers 
not to select the Cerium Networks, Spokane, WA quote and have gone through the steps with Cisco to 
change our preferred service partner to CompuNet.   
 
SUMMARY  

An equipment list prepared and quotes were solicited for Cisco SmartNet support from three 
vendors who are listed on the Washington State Department of Enterprise list as Cisco resellers.    
The responses were reviewed for fit and function by Information Technology. 

RECOMMENDATION  

Recommend the Board of Benton County Commissioners approve the renewal of a 24 month 
SmartNet Support contract with CompuNet, Inc., Lewiston, ID, in an amount not to exceed 
$264,000.00 excluding Washington State Sales Tax.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT  

   Funding was included in the Benton County Capital Improvement Plan 2017-2022 in Network 
Infrastructure SmartNet project. 
 
MOTION  

AGENDA/WORKSHOP ITEM TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED         
Meeting Date: January 10, 2017 Execute Contract      Consent Agenda X   
Subject: Renewal of 24 month Cisco 

SmartNet Support Contract  Pass Resolution  X   Public Hearing     
   Pass Ordinance     1st Discussion    
By: Teri L. Holmes Pass Motion     2nd Discussion     
Reviewed By: Loretta SmithKelty Other     Other      
                    

WEH
Text Box
m. Support Contract for Cisco Equipment from CompuNet, Inc.



RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 

 
IN THE MATTER OF PURCHASING A SUPPORT CONTRACT COVERING CISCO 
EQUIPMENT LOCATED WITHIN COUNTY CAMPUSES FROM COMPUNET, INC., 
LEWISTON, ID 
 
WHEREAS, Cisco equipment has become an integral part of the county data and voice network 
and it is time to renew the support contract; and  
 
WHEREAS, the “Benton County Capital Improvement Plan 2017-2022” includes renewal of the 
Cisco SmartNet in Network Infrastructure SmartNet project; and 
 
WHEREAS, three (3) vendors on the Benton County Vendor List were asked to provide 24 
month quotes for Cisco SmartNet support services; and 
 
WHEREAS, CompuNet, Inc., Lewiston, ID., responded with the best price quote for Cisco 
SmartNet support services on Cisco devices listed in the request, as indicated in the following 
table (prices exclude sales tax): 

VENDOR ADDRESS QUOTE 

Cerium Networks Spokane, WA $256,405.22 
Ednetics, Inc. Post Falls, ID No Response 
CompuNet, Inc. Lewiston, ID $263,701.36 

 
WHEREAS, Information Technology has reviewed the quotes for completeness and 
recommends purchasing the Cisco SmartNet support from CompuNet, as the most 
advantageous to the county with price and other factors considered;  NOW, THEREFORE, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County 
Washington agrees with Information Technology and authorizes Information Technology to 
purchase the Cisco SmartNet support contract from ComputNet, Inc., Lewiston, ID., in an 
amount not to exceed $263,702 excluding Washington State Sales Tax; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the SmartNet Support Contract upon execution will be 
retroactive to 1/1/2017 and end 24 months later on 12/31/2018. 
 

Dated this day of , 
 

 
 

Chairman of the Board 
 

 
 

Member 
 

 
 

Member 
 

 
Attest: of Benton County, Washington. 

Clerk of the Board 
 
Original: Information Technology 
Copies: Auditor 

T Holmes 















































WEH
Text Box
n. Purchases of Computers/Printers/Scanners/Tablets/Licenses for Document Preservation















WEH
Text Box
o. Amended Contract #1 w/Washington State Patrol for Criminal History Record Information Management















WEH
Text Box
p. Contract w/Tri-Cities Monitoring, Inc. for Armed Security Guard Services













































WEH
Text Box
q. Contract w/City of Kennewick for Graffiti Abatement Program

















WEH
Text Box
r. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 136





WEH
Text Box
s. Establishing Cost Share Rate to Divide Costs of Juvenile Dependency Public Defense Contracts Between Benton & Franklin Counties for 2017





WEH
Text Box
t. Amended District Court Public Defense Contract w/J Briggs













WEH
Text Box
u. District Court Public Defense Contract w/H Villani









WEH
Text Box
v. District Court Public Defense Contract Termination w/Z Goytowski





WEH
Text Box
w. District Court Public Defense Contract Termination w/A Pechtel





WEH
Text Box
x. Amended Superior Court Public Defense Contract w/T Orosco













WEH
Text Box
y. Contract Termination w/Mail Finance, A Neopost Company







WEH
Text Box
z. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0503-101, Dept. 000





WEH
Text Box
aa. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 114





AGENDA ITEM 
Meeting Date: January 10, 2017 
Subject: Appraisers 
Prepared by: C. Fraley 
Reviewed by: S. Hallstrom 

TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 
Execute Contract X 
Pass Resolution X 
Pass Ordinance 
Pass Motion 
Other 

Consent Agenda 
Public Hearing 
1st Discussion 
2nd Discussion 
Other 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: The Benton County negotiation team has successfully negotiated 
an amendment to the existing three-year collective bargaining agreement with AFSCME for 2017 
reopeners, representing Appraiser employees. 

SUMMARY: See above. 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve a resolution authorizing the Chair of the Board to sign Amendment I 
to the 2016-2018 collective bargaining agreement. 

FISCAL IMPACT: This resolution will provide for: a two percent (2%) increase to the 2016 Salary 
Schedule effective January 1, 2017; and, an increase in Benton County's contribution to employees' 
health and welfare benefits in the amount of $5 per month, for a total monthly contribution of up to the 
amount of $1,138.60, effective the first payroll cycle following the date of the last signature to the 
collective bargaining agreement. 

MOTION: I move that we approve the resolution authorizing the Board of County Commissioners to 
sign said Resolution. 

WEH
Text Box
bb. Collective Bargaining Agreement w/AFSCME AFL-CIO for Appraiser Employees



RESOLUTION 

B E F O R E THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

IN THE MATTER OF THE 2016-2018 AGREEMENT BETWEEN BENTON COUNTY AND AFSCME AFL-
CIO, LOCAL 2658B, COUNCIL 2, REPRESENTING APPRAISER E M P L O Y E E S . 

WHEREAS, the Collective Bargaining Agreement between the parties has been reached between 
negotiators for Benton County and AFSCME, AFL-CIO, LOCAL 2658B to finalize a reopener to the 2016¬
2018 CBA; and 

WHEREAS, Benton County Board of Commissioners have previously discussed and approved the 
significant terms of the Agreement, 

NOW, T H E R E F O R E , B E IT R E S O L V E D that the Benton County Board of Commissioners hereby approve 
the Agreement and are authorized to sign the same. 

Dated this day of January, 2017. 

Chairman of the Board 

Member 

' Member 

Constituting the Board of Commissioners 
of Benton County, Washington 

Attest 
Clerk of the Board 

Orig: Civil 

c c : David Sparks; Steve Hallstrom 
S . Hallstrom 

1 



A M E N D M E N T I 
to 

2016 - 2018 A G R E E M E N T 
Between 

B E N T O N C O U N T Y 
And 

C O U N C I L 2, L O C A L 2658B 
W A S H I N G T O N S T A T E C O U N C I L O F C O U N T Y AND C I T Y E M P L O Y E E S , 

A F S C M E , A F L - C I O 
Representing A P P R A I S E R S 

Benton County (Employer) and WSCCCE, AFSCME, AFL-CIO, Local 2658B, Council 
2, hereby agree to amend the Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) in effect from 
January 1, 2016, through December 31, 2018, as follows: 

1. The fol lowing paragraph is added to Section 22.2: 

Effective January 1, 2017, the 2016 Salary Schedule w i l l be increased by two  
percent (2%). This calculation and process shall be determined and established by  
the Benton County Commissioners Office. 

2. Section 23.2 is hereby amended to include a new sub-section c, to read as follows: 

(c.) Effective the first payroll cycle following the date o f the last signature  
affixed to the CBA, Employer agrees to increase Employer's monthly  
health and welfare contribution in the amount o f Five and No/100 Dollars  
($5.00), for a total monthly insurance health and welfare contribution up  
to the amount o f One Thousand, One Hundred, Thirty-Eight and 60/100  
Dollars ($1,138.60), as the unit selected the Employer offered UEBT  
dental and vision composite plans, as follows: 

1. The Employer agrees to pay up to a maximum of One Thousand, One  
Hundred, Twenty-Three and 60/100 ($1,123.60) per month towards  
medical, dental, vision, and life insurance coverage. 

2- The Employer agrees to pay Fifteen and No/100 Dollars ($15.00) per  
month into the employees' V E B A accounts. This V E B A contribution  
is in exchange for a reduction in Employer's insurance contribution by  
Fifteen and No/100 Dollars ($15.00) per month 

3. No other language in the CBA is amended or intended to be changed or modified. 

4. Except as otherwise stipulated above, this Amendment is effective as o f January 
1,2017. 

APPRAISERS 2016-2018 CBA AMEND I - 1 



I N W I T N E S S W H E R E O F , the parties hereto agree to the terms and conditions o f this 
Amendment and have caused it to be signed by their duly constituted and legal 
representatives as follows: 

B O A R D O F B E N T O N C O U N T Y W A S H I N G T O N S T A T E 
C O M M I S S I O N E R S C O U N T Y O F C O U N T Y AND 

C I T Y E M P L O Y E E S , A F L - C I O 

Chair 

Kevin Dougherty, Representative 
Member 

Date: 
Member 

Constituting the Board o f 
Benton County Commissioners 

Attest: Date: 
Clerk to the Board 

Approved as to form: 

Stephen J. Hallstrom 
Deputy Prosecuting Attorney 

APPRAISERS 2016-2018 CBA AMEND I - 2 



 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: Jan 10, 2017 
Subject: Personal Service Agreement 

between Benton County and Partners 
for Early Learning for Building 
Resilience through Family Support 

Prepared by: Shyanne Faulconer 
Reviewed by:  

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract        X 
Pass Resolution            X 
Pass Ordinance              
Pass Motion    
None    

 
 
 
Consent Agenda     X 
Public Hearing             
1st Discussion             
2nd Discussion             
Other              

 
SUMMARY 
Benton County would like to enter into a service agreement with Partners for Early Learning (“Contractor”) for the 
Building Resilience through Family Support Program.  
 
For the time period of January 1, 2017, through December 31, 2017, Contractor shall be compensated by County in 
an amount not to exceed forty-four thousand eight hundred sixty dollars ($44,860.00). For the time period of January 
1, 2018 through December 31, 2018, Contractor shall be compensated in the amount not to exceed thirty-three 
thousand four hundred twelve dollars and fifty cents ($33,412.50) (75% of 2018 requested budget). 
 
Funding would support resources an independent contractor (home visit coordinator), child abuse prevention training, 
Ready! For Kindergarten materials, and a parent assessment tool. 
 
The program will provide home visitor support to high-risk, low-income families with young children (birth-5) within 
the Richland School District. The goal of the program is to build resilience within the family, mitigate toxic stress, 
promote school readiness, and connect families to resources, thus decreasing gang involvement and future crime. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
Partners for Early Learning applied for consideration in the RFP process that commenced on September 1, 2016 for 
contracts for 2017-2018. After speaking with references (i.e. Mid-Columbia Library, Richland School District, and 
others) it was clear that this program was valuable, and that the organization had the experience and infrastructure 
necessary to run a successful, impactful program. The 2018 budget was reduced by 25% to allow for the organization 
to find matching funds elsewhere, with the intention of long-term sustainability. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

 Sign the Resolution to accept proposed agreement 
 Approve proposed agreement by signing all copies where indicated 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Funding for the additional services as outlined in this amendment are provided by the Benton County Public Safety 
Tax. There is no impact on the current expense budget. All revenues and expenditures are from the Public Safety 
Tax Fund 0148-101. 
 

WEH
Text Box
cc. Agreement w/Partners for Early Learning for Building Resilience through Family Support



cc: Auditor; PA-Contract Compliance; Partners for Early Learning  Faulconer 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
IN THE MATTER OF SIGNING A PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON AND PARTNERS FOR EARLY LEARNING FOR 
BUILDING RESILIENCE THROUGH FAMILY SUPPORT PROGRAM 
 
WHEREAS, in August, 2014, the voters of Benton County approved Proposition 14-5, a 3/10 of 
one percent sales and use tax pursuant to RCW 82.14.450 to fund criminal justice and public safety 
programs in Benton County; and 
 
WHEREAS, funding decisions must fall within the parameters and guidance of the text of voter-
approve Proposition 14-5 where to “improve public safety and combat criminal gang activity and 

other crime by hiring additional police officers, corrections officers and prosecutors; continuing 

the Metro Drug Task Force; funding gang and crime prevention efforts; and funding court and 

clerk programs including a seventh Superior Court Judge; and drug and mental health courts”; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, funding gang and crime prevention efforts, the Benton County Gang and Crime 
Prevention and Intervention Initiative is to improve the quality of life for the residents of Benton 
County by reducing the incidence of gang-related and other crime in Benton County; and 
 
WHEREAS, on April 12, 2016 the Benton County Board of Commissioners approved funding 
for gang and crime prevention efforts, utilizing an Request for Proposal process; and 
 
WHEREAS, Partners for Early Learning has proposed a Building Resilience Through Family 
Support Program in the total 2017-2018 biennial amount of seventy-eight thousand, two hundred 
seventy two dollars and fifty cents ($78,272.50); and 
 
WHEREAS, for the time period of January 1, 2017, through December 31, 2017, CONTRACTOR 
shall be compensated by COUNTY in an amount not to exceed forty-four thousand eight hundred 
sixty dollars ($44,860.00). For the time period of January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2018, 
CONTRACTOR shall be compensated in the amount of thirty-three thousand four hundred twelve 
dollars and fifty cents ($33,412.50) (75% of 2018 requested budget); NOW, THEREFORE 
 
  



cc: Auditor; PA-Contract Compliance; Partners for Early Learning  Faulconer 

BE IT RESOLVED the amount of $78,272.50, the 2017-2018 biennial budgeted amount, has 
been approved by the Board of Benton County Commissioners; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED each monthly payment will be made payable to Partners for 
Early Learning. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, this agreement will start January 1, 2017. 
 
 
Dated this . . . . . . . day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 20 . . . .  
 
 

       
Chairman of the Board  

 
       

Chairman Pro-Tem 
 

                
Member 

 
Attest:…………………………….. 
               Clerk of the Board      Constituting the Board of County  

Commissioners of Benton County, Washington 
                   
 
 
 
  



 

 

- 1 - 

BENTON COUNTY 

PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACT 

 TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

THIS CONTRACT is made and entered into by and between BENTON 

COUNTY, a political subdivision, with its principal offices at 620 

Market Street, Prosser, WA 99350 (hereinafter "COUNTY"), and 

Partners for Early Learning, a non-profit corporation with its 

principal offices at 339 Oahu St., Richland, Washington, 99352, 

(hereinafter "CONTRACTOR"). 

 

In consideration of the mutual benefits and covenants contained 

herein, the parties agree as follows: 

 

1. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

 

This Contract consists of the following documents: 

 

a. Terms and Conditions (this document); 

b. Exhibit A, Proposal Application from Building Resilience 

Through Family Support Project; 

c. Exhibit B, Progress Reporting and Measures; and 

d. Exhibit C, Project Budget.  

 

 

2. DURATION OF CONTRACT 

 

The term of this Contract shall begin January 1, 2017, and shall 

expire on December 31, 2018. The CONTRACTOR shall complete all 

services by the time(s) specified herein, or if no such time is 

otherwise specified, no later than the expiration date. 

 

3. SERVICES PROVIDED 

 

The CONTRACTOR shall perform the following services: 

 

a. A detailed description of the services to be performed by the 

CONTRACTOR is set forth in Exhibit "A, Scope of Work", which 

is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 

 

b. The CONTRACTOR agrees to provide its own labor and materials. 

Unless otherwise provided in this Contract, no material, 

labor, or facilities will be furnished by the COUNTY. 

 

c. The CONTRACTOR shall confer with the COUNTY from time to time 

during the progress of the services performed. The CONTRACTOR 

shall prepare and deliver monthly status reports in the form 



 

 

- 2 - 

of Exhibit B demonstrating services completed to date. 

 

4. CONTRACT REPRESENTATIVES 

 

Each party to this Contract shall have a Contract representative. 

Each party may change its representative upon providing written 

notice to the other party. The parties' representatives are as 

follows: 

 

a. For CONTRACTOR: 

 

Karen Weakley 

 339 Oahu St. 

 Richland, WA 99352 

Phone: (509)430-6358 

Email: karenweakley@hotmail.com 

 

b. For COUNTY: 

 

Shyanne Faulconer 

PO Box 190 

Prosser, WA 99350 

Phone: (509)786-3760 

Email: Shyanne.Faulconer@co.benton.wa.us 

 

5. COMPENSATION 

 

For the services performed hereunder, the CONTRACTOR shall be paid 

as follows: 

 

a. A detailed description of compensation to be paid by the 

COUNTY for the services set forth in Exhibit A is set forth 

in Exhibit C, “Project Budget” which is attached hereto and 

incorporated herein by reference.  Accordingly, for the time 

period of January 1, 2017, through December 31, 2017, 

CONTRACTOR shall be compensated by COUNTY in an amount not to 

exceed forty-four thousand eight hundred sixty dollars 

($44,860.00). For the time period of January 1, 2018 through 

December 31, 2018, CONTRACTOR shall be compensated in the 

amount not to exceed thirty-three thousand four hundred 

twelve dollars and fifty cents ($33,412.50) (75% of 2018 

requested budget). 

 

b. No payment shall be made for any services performed by the 

CONTRACTOR, except for services identified and set forth in 

this Contract. 

 



 

 

- 3 - 

c. The CONTRACTOR may submit invoices to the COUNTY not more 

than once per month during the progress of the services 

performed for partial payment of the services completed to 

date. The COUNTY shall pay the CONTRACTOR in the month 

following the actual delivery of services and will remit 

payment within thirty (30) days from the date of receipt. 

 

d. The CONTRACTOR shall not be paid for services rendered under 

this Contract unless and until they have been performed to 

the satisfaction of the COUNTY. 

 

e. In the event the CONTRACTOR has failed to perform any 

substantial obligation to be performed by the CONTRACTOR 

under this Contract and such failure has not been cured within 

ten (10) days following notice from the COUNTY, the COUNTY 

may, in its sole discretion, upon written notice to the 

CONTRACTOR, withhold any and all monies due and payable to 

the CONTRACTOR, without penalty, until such failure to 

perform is cured or otherwise adjudicated. "Substantial" for 

the purposes of this Contract means faithfully fulfilling the 

terms of this Contract with variances only for technical or 

minor omissions or defects. 

 

f. Unless otherwise provided in this Contract or any exhibits or 

attachments hereto, the CONTRACTOR will not be paid for any 

billings or invoices presented for services rendered prior to 

the execution of this Contract or after its termination. 

 

6. AMENDMENTS 

 

No amendment or modification shall be made to this 

Contract, unless set forth in a written Contract Amendment 

signed by both parties. Services performed under a Contract 

Amendment shall not proceed until the Contract Amendment is 

duly executed by the COUNTY. 

 

7. HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFICATION 

 

a. The CONTRACTOR shall hold harmless, indemnify and defend the 

COUNTY, its officers, officials, employees and agents, from 

and against any and all claims, actions, suits, liability, 

loss, expenses, damages, and judgments of any nature 

whatsoever, including reasonable costs and attorneys' fees in 

defense thereof, for injury, sickness, disability or death to 

persons or damage to property or business, which are caused 

in whole or in part by any act or omission, negligent or 

otherwise, of CONTRACTOR or its subcontractors, which arise 



 

 

- 4 - 

in connection with the services performed under this 

Contract, or are caused or occasioned in whole or in part by 

reason of the presence of the CONTRACTOR or its subcontractors 

or their property upon or in the proximity of the property of 

the County. PROVIDED, that the CONTRACTOR'S obligation 

hereunder shall not extend to injury, sickness, death or 

damage caused by or arising out of the sole negligence of the 

COUNTY, its officers, officials, employees or agents. 

 

b. In any and all claims against the COUNTY, its officers, 

officials, employees and agents by any employee of the 

CONTRACTOR, subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly 

employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts any of them 

may be liable, the indemnification obligation under this 

Section shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on 

the amount or type of damages, compensation, or benefits 

payable by or for the CONTRACTOR or subcontractor under 

Workers Compensation acts, disability benefit acts, or other 

employee benefit acts, it being clearly agreed and understood 

by the parties hereto that the CONTRACTOR expressly waives 

any immunity the CONTRACTOR might have had under such laws, 

including but not limited to Title 51 of the Revised Code of 

Washington. By executing this Contract, the CONTRACTOR 

acknowledges that the foregoing waiver has been mutually 

negotiated by the parties and that the provisions of this 

Section shall be incorporated, as relevant, into any contract 

the CONTRACTOR makes with any subcontractor or agent 

performing services hereunder. CONTRACTOR’S obligations under 

this Section [7] shall survive termination and expiration of 

this Contract. 

 

c. The CONTRACTOR'S obligations hereunder shall include, but are 

not limited to, investigating, adjusting and defending all 

claims alleging loss from action, error or omission, or breach 

of any common law, statutory or other delegated duty by the 

CONTRACTOR, the CONTRACTOR'S employees, agents or 

subcontractors. 

 

8. INSURANCE 

 

a. Workers Compensation: CONTRACTOR shall comply with all State 

of Washington workers compensation statutes and regulations. 

Prior to the start of work under this Contract, workers 

compensation coverage shall be provided for all employees of 

CONTRACTOR and employees of any subcontractor or sub-

subcontractor. Coverage shall include bodily injury 

(including death) by accident or disease, which arises out of 



 

 

- 5 - 

or in connection with the performance of this Contract. 

CONTRACTOR shall submit a copy of its certificate of coverage 

from the Department of Labor and Industries prior to 

commencement of work. Except as prohibited by law, CONTRACTOR 

waives all rights of subrogation against the COUNTY for 

recovery of damages to the extent they are covered by workers 

compensation and employers liability. 

 

If CONTRACTOR, subcontractor, or sub-subcontractor fails to 

comply with all State of Washington workers compensation 

statutes and regulations and COUNTY incurs fines or is 

required by law to provide benefits to or obtain coverage for 

such employees, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify the COUNTY. 

Indemnity shall include all fines, payment of benefits to 

CONTRACTOR or subcontractor employees, or their heirs or 

legal representatives, and the cost of effecting coverage on 

behalf of such employees. Any amount owed to COUNTY by 

CONTRACTOR pursuant to the indemnity agreement may be 

deducted from any payments owed by COUNTY to CONTRACTOR for 

performance of this Contract. 

 

b. Commercial General Liability and Employers Liability 

Insurance: Prior to the start of work under this Contract, 

CONTRACTOR shall maintain commercial general liability 

coverage (policy form CG0001 or equivalent) to protect the 

CONTRACTOR from claims for wrongful death, bodily injury, 

personal injury and property damage, which may arise from any 

actions or inactions under this Contract by CONTRACTOR or by 

anyone directly employed by or contracting with CONTRACTOR. 

The minimum commercial general liability insurance limits 

shall be as follows: 

 

$2,000,000 General Aggregate 

$2,000,000 Products/Completed Operations Aggregate 

$1,000,000 Personal Injury and Advertising Injury 

$1,000,000 Each Occurrence 

 

The commercial general liability policy will contain an 

endorsement naming the COUNTY, its elected and appointed 

officials, employees and agents as an Additional Insured and 

an endorsement that specifically states that CONTRACTOR’s 

commercial general liability policy shall be primary, and not 

contributory, with any other insurance maintained by the 

COUNTY. 

 

The CONTRACTOR will provide commercial general liability 

coverage that does not exclude any activity to be performed 



 

 

- 6 - 

in fulfillment of this Contract and does not exclude liability 

pursuant to the indemnification requirement under Section 

[7]. CONTRACTOR'S commercial general liability policy shall 

provide cross liability coverage, indicating essentially that 

except with respect to the limits of insurance and any rights 

or duties specifically assigned in this coverage part to the 

first named insured, this insurance applies as if each named 

insured were the only named insured, and separately to each 

insured against whom claims are made or suit is brought. 

 

CONTRACTOR shall also provide Stop Gap Employer's Liability 

Insurance coverage with minimum limits as follows: 

 

$1,000,000 Each Accident 

$1,000,000 Policy Limit for Disease 

$1,000,000 Each Employee for Disease 

 

c. Automobile Liability: The CONTRACTOR shall maintain, during 

the life of this Contract, Automobile Liability Insurance 

(ISO Form Number CA0001 or equivalent) covering any auto 

(Symbol 1), or if the Contractor has no owned autos, hired 

(Symbol 8) and non-owned autos (Symbol 9), in the amount of 

not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) per accident 

for Bodily Injury and Property Damage to protect CONTRACTOR 

from claims which may arise from the performance of this 

Contract, whether such operations be by the CONTRACTOR or by 

anyone directly or indirectly employed by the CONTRACTOR. 

 

 

d. Other Insurance Provisions: 

 

1. The CONTRACTOR'S liability insurance provisions shall be 
primary with respect to any insurance or self-insurance 

programs covering the COUNTY, its elected and appointed 

officers, officials, employees and agents. CONTRACTOR’S 

liability insurance policies must be endorsed to show this 

primary coverage. Any insurance, self-insured retention, 

deductible or risk retention maintained or participated 

in by the COUNTY shall be excess and not contributory to 

CONTRACTOR’S insurance policies. 

 

2. The CONTRACTOR'S liability insurance policies shall 

contain no special limitations on the scope of protection 

afforded to the COUNTY as an additional insured. 

 

3. Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the 
policies shall not affect coverage provided to the COUNTY, 



 

 

- 7 - 

its officers, officials, employees or agents. 

 

4. The CONTRACTOR'S insurance shall apply separately to each 
insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, 

except with respect to the limits of the insurer's 

liability. 

 

5. The CONTRACTOR shall include all subcontractors as 

insureds under its policies or shall furnish separate 

certificates and endorsements for each subcontractor. All 

coverage for subcontractors shall be subject to all of the 

requirements stated herein. 

 

6. The insurance limits mandated for any insurance coverage 
required by this Contract are not intended to be an 

indication of exposure nor are they limitations on 

indemnification. If the CONTRACTOR maintains higher limits 

than the minimums required in this contract, the COUNTY 

shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits 

maintained by the CONTRACTOR. 

 

7. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain all required policies in 
force from the time services commence until services are 

completed. Certificates, policies, and endorsements 

expiring before completion of services shall be promptly 

replaced. All liability insurance required under this 

Contract, shall be written on an Occurrence Policy form.  

 

8. CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to waive subrogation with respect 
to each insurance policy maintained under this Contract. 

When required by an insurer, or if a policy condition does 

not permit CONTRACTOR to enter into a pre-loss agreement 

to waive subrogation without an endorsement, then 

CONTRACTOR agrees to notify the insurer and obtain such 

endorsement. This requirement shall not apply to any 

policy which includes a condition expressly prohibiting 

waiver of subrogation by the insured or which voids 

coverage should the CONTRACTOR enter into such a waiver 

of subrogation on a pre-loss basis.  

 

9. Compensation and/or payments due to CONTRACTOR under this 
Agreement are expressly conditioned upon CONTRACTOR’S 

strict compliance with all insurance requirements. Payment 

to CONTRACTOR may be suspended in the event of non-

compliance. Upon receipt of evidence of CONTRACTOR’S 

compliance, such payments not otherwise subject to 

withholding or set-off will be released to CONTRACTOR. 



 

 

- 8 - 

 

e. Verification of Coverage and Acceptability of Insurers: 

 

All insurance required under this Contract shall be issued by 

companies authorized to do business under the laws of the 

State of Washington and have a A. M. Best's rating of at least 

A-VII or better in the most recently published edition of 

Best’s Reports. Any exception to this requirement must be 

reviewed and approved in writing by the Benton County Risk 

Manager. If an insurer is not admitted to do business within 

Washington State, all insurance policies and procedures for 

issuing the insurance policy must comply with Chapter 48.15 

RCW and 284-15 WAC. 

  

1. All insurance to be maintained by the CONTRACTOR, other 
than Auto Liability and Workmen’s Compensation, shall 

specifically include the COUNTY, its elected officials, 

employees and volunteers as an “Additional Insured” by way 

of endorsement and shall not be reduced or canceled without 

thirty (30) days written prior notice to the COUNTY. Any 

insurance or self-insurance maintained by the COUNTY, its 

elected and appointed officials, employees and agents 

shall be excess of the CONTRACTOR’s insurance and shall 

not contribute to it. 

 

2. Certificates of Liability Insurance, with endorsements 

attached, are to be provided to the County’s Contract 

Representative referenced in Section 4. 

 

3. All written notices under this Section [8] and notice of 
cancellation or change of required insurance coverages 

shall be mailed to the COUNTY’s Contract Representative 

referenced in Section 4. 

 

4. The CONTRACTOR or its broker shall provide a copy of any 
and all insurance policies specified in this Contract upon 

request of the Benton County Risk Manager at the following 

address: Benton County Risk Manager, 7122 W. Okanogan 

Place, Bldg. A, Kennewick, WA 99336. 

 

9. TERMINATION 

 

a. The COUNTY may terminate this Contract in whole or in part 

whenever the COUNTY determines, in its sole discretion, that 

such termination is in the best interests of the COUNTY. The 

COUNTY may terminate this Contract upon giving ten (10) days 

written notice by certified mail to the CONTRACTOR. In that 



 

 

- 9 - 

event, the COUNTY shall pay the CONTRACTOR for all cost 

incurred by the CONTRACTOR in performing the Contract up to 

the date of such notice. Payment shall be made in accordance 

with the Compensation Section of this Contract. 

 

b. In the event that funding for this project is withdrawn, 

reduced or limited in any way after the effective date of 

this Contract, the COUNTY may summarily terminate this 

Contract notwithstanding any other termination provision in 

this Contract. Termination under this paragraph shall be 

effective upon the date specified in the written notice of 

termination sent by COUNTY to the CONTRACTOR. After the 

effective date, no charges incurred under this Contract shall 

be allowed. 

 

c. If the CONTRACTOR breaches any of its obligations hereunder, 

and fails to cure the breach within ten (10) days of written 

notice to do so by the COUNTY, the COUNTY may immediately 

terminate this Contract by so notifying the CONTRACTOR, in 

which case the COUNTY shall pay the CONTRACTOR only for the 

costs of services accepted by the COUNTY, in accordance with 

the Compensation Section of this Contract.  

 

10. ASSIGNMENT, DELEGATION AND SUBCONTRACTING 

 

a. The CONTRACTOR shall perform the terms of this Contract using 

only its bona fide employees or agents, and the obligations 

and duties of the CONTRACTOR under this Contract shall not be 

assigned, delegated, or subcontracted to any other person or 

firm without the prior express written consent of the COUNTY. 

 

b. The CONTRACTOR warrants that it has not paid nor has it agreed 

to pay any company, person, partnership, or firm, other than 

a bona fide employee working exclusively for CONTRACTOR, any 

fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or other 

consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or 

making of this Contract. 

 

11. NON-WAIVER OF RIGHTS 

 

The parties agree that the excuse or forgiveness of performance, 

or waiver of any provision(s) of this Contract does not constitute 

a waiver of such provision(s) or future performance, or prejudice 

the right of the waiving party to enforce any of the provisions of 

this Contract at a later time. All waivers of any provision(s) of 

this Contract shall be in writing and in the absence of such, no 

action or inaction shall be construed to be such a waiver. 



 

 

- 10 - 

 

 

12. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

 

a. The CONTRACTOR'S services shall be furnished by the 

CONTRACTOR as an independent contractor and not as an agent, 

employee or servant of the COUNTY. The CONTRACTOR 

specifically has the right to direct and control CONTRACTOR'S 

own activities in providing the agreed services in accordance 

with the specifications set out in this Contract. 

 

b. The CONTRACTOR acknowledges that the entire compensation for 

this Contract is set forth in Section [5] of this Contract, 

and neither the CONTRACTOR nor its employees are entitled to 

any COUNTY benefits, including, but not limited to: vacation 

pay, holiday pay, sick leave pay, medical, dental, or other 

insurance benefits, fringe benefits, or any other rights or 

privileges afforded to COUNTY employees. 

 

c. The CONTRACTOR shall have and maintain complete 

responsibility and control over all of its subcontractors, 

employees, agents, and representatives. No subcontractor, 

employee, agent, or representative of the CONTRACTOR shall be 

or deem to be or act or purport to act as an employee, agent, 

or representative of the COUNTY. 

 

d. CONTRACTOR shall pay for all taxes, fees, licenses, or 

payments required by federal, state or local law which are 

now or may be enacted during the term of this Contract. 

 

e. The CONTRACTOR agrees to immediately remove any of its 

employees or agents from their assignment to perform services 

under this Contract upon receipt of a written request to do 

so from the COUNTY'S contract representative or designee. 

 

13. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 

 

The CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable federal, state and 

local laws, rules and regulations in performing this Contract. 

 

14. INSPECTION OF BOOKS AND RECORDS 

 

The COUNTY may, at reasonable times, inspect the books and records 

of the CONTRACTOR relating to the performance of this Contract. 

The CONTRACTOR shall keep, and make available to the County upon 

request, all records relating to the performance of this Contract 

for six (6) years after Contract termination or expiration. 



 

 

- 11 - 

 

 

15. NONDISCRIMINATION 

 

The CONTRACTOR, its assignees, delegates, or subcontractors shall 

not discriminate against any person in the performance of any of 

its obligations hereunder on the basis of age, sex, marital status, 

sexual orientation, race, creed, religion, color, national origin, 

honorably discharged veteran or military status, disability, or 

any other protected status. 

 

16. OWNERSHIP OF MATERIALS/WORKS PRODUCED 

 

a. All reports, drawings, plans, specifications, all forms of 

electronic media, and data and documents produced in the 

performance of the work under this Contract shall be "works 

for hire" as defined by the U.S. Copyright Act of 1976 and 

shall be owned by the COUNTY. Ownership includes the right to 

copyright, patent, register, and the ability to transfer 

these rights. The COUNTY agrees that if it uses any materials 

prepared by the CONTRACTOR for purposes other than those 

intended by this Contract, it does so at its sole risk and it 

agrees to hold the CONTRACTOR harmless there from to the 

extent such use is not agreed to in writing by the CONTRACTOR. 

 

b. An electronic copy of all word processing documents shall be 

submitted to the COUNTY upon request or at the end of the job 

using the word processing program and version specified by 

the COUNTY. 

 

17. PATENT/COPYRIGHT INFRINGEMENT 

 

The CONTRACTOR shall hold harmless, indemnify and defend the 

COUNTY, its officers, officials, employees and agents, from and 

against any claimed action, cause or demand brought against the 

COUNTY, where such action is based on the claim that information 

supplied by the CONTRACTOR or subcontractor infringes any patent 

or copyright. The CONTRACTOR shall be notified promptly in writing 

by the COUNTY of any notice of such claim. 

 

18. DISPUTES 

 

Disputes between the CONTRACTOR and the COUNTY, arising under and 

by virtue of this Contract, shall be brought to the attention of 

the COUNTY at the earliest possible time in order that such matters 

may be settled or other appropriate action promptly taken. Any 

dispute relating to the quality or acceptability of performance 



 

 

- 12 - 

and/or compensation due the CONTRACTOR shall be decided by the 

COUNTY'S Contract Representative or designee. All rulings, orders, 

instructions and decisions of the COUNTY'S Contract Representative 

shall be final and conclusive, subject to CONTRACTOR'S right to 

seek judicial relief. 

 

19. CONFIDENTIALITY 

 

The CONTRACTOR, its employees, subcontractors, and their employees 

shall maintain the confidentiality of all information provided by 

the COUNTY or acquired by the COUNTY in performance of this 

Contract, except upon the prior written consent of the COUNTY or 

an order entered by a court of competent jurisdiction. The 

CONTRACTOR shall promptly give the COUNTY written notice of any 

judicial proceeding seeking disclosure of such information. 

 

20. CHOICE OF LAW, JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

 

a. This Contract has been and shall be construed as having been 

made and delivered within the State of Washington, and it is 

agreed by each party hereto that this Contract shall be 

governed by the laws of the State of Washington, both as to 

its interpretation and performance. 

 

b. Any action at law, suit in equity, or judicial proceeding 

arising out of this Contract shall be instituted and 

maintained only in any of the courts of competent jurisdiction 

in Benton County, Washington. 

 

21. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

 

The COUNTY, to the extent permitted by law, and the CONTRACTOR 

each bind themselves, their partners, successors, executors, 

administrators, and assigns to the other party to this Contract 

and to the partners, successors, administrators, and assigns of 

such other party in respect to all covenants to this Contract. 

 

22. SEVERABILITY 

 

a. If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any part, term or 

provision of this Contract to be illegal, or invalid in whole 

or in part, the validity of the remaining provisions shall 

not be affected, and the parties' rights and obligations shall 

be construed and enforced as if this Contract did not contain 

the particular provision held to be invalid. 

 

b. If it should appear that any provision of this Contract is in 



 

 

- 13 - 

conflict with any statutory provision of the State of 

Washington, said provision which may conflict therewith shall 

be deemed inoperative and null and void insofar as it may be 

in conflict therewith, and shall be deemed modified to conform 

to such statutory provision. 
 

23. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

 

The parties agree that this Contract is the complete expression of 

its terms and conditions. Any oral or written representations or 

understandings not incorporated in this Contract are specifically 

excluded. 

 

 

24. NOTICES 

 

Any notices shall be effective if personally served upon the other 

party or if mailed by registered or certified mail, return receipt 

requested, to the addresses set out in the Contract Representatives 

Section of this Contract. Notice may also be given by facsimile 

with the original to follow by regular mail. Notice shall be deemed 

to be given three days following the date of mailing or 

immediately, if personally served. For service by facsimile, 

service shall be effective at the beginning of the next working 

day. 

 

25. SURVIVABILITY 

 

All Contract terms, which by their context are clearly intended to 

survive the termination and/or expiration of this Contract, shall 

so survive. These terms include, but are not limited to, 

indemnification provisions (Sections [7] and [17]); inspection and 

keeping of records and books (Section [14]); litigation hold notice 

(Section [26]); Public Records Act (Section [27]) and 

confidentiality (Section [19]). 

 

26. LITIGATION HOLD NOTICE 

 

In the event the COUNTY learns of circumstances leading to an 

increased likelihood of litigation regarding any matter where the 

records kept by CONTRACTOR pursuant to Section [14] of this 

agreement may be of evidentiary value, the COUNTY may issue written 

notice to CONTRACTOR of such circumstances and direct the 

CONTRACTOR to “hold” such records. In the event that CONTRACTOR 

receives such written notice, CONTRACTOR shall abide by all 

directions therein whether or not such written notice is received 

at a time when a Contract between CONTRACTOR and the COUNTY is in 



 

 

- 14 - 

force. Such directions will include, but will not be limited to, 

instructions to suspend the six (6) year purge schedule as set out 

above in Section [14]. 

 

27. PUBLIC RECORDS ACT 

 

CONTRACTOR hereby acknowledges that the COUNTY is a governmental 

entity and as such is subject to the requirements of the Public 

Records Act, RCW 42.56 et seq. Accordingly, CONTRACTOR understands 

that to the extent a proper request is made, the COUNTY may be 

required by virtue of that Act to disclose any records related to 

this Contract actually in its possession or in CONTRACTOR’S 

possession. This may include records that CONTRACTOR might regard 

as confidential or proprietary. To the extent that CONTRACTOR 

provides any records to the COUNTY that it regards as confidential 

or proprietary, it agrees to conspicuously mark the records as 

such. CONTRACTOR also hereby waives any and all claims or causes 

of action for any injury it may suffer by virtue of COUNTY’S 

release of records covered under the Public Records Act. COUNTY 

agrees to take all reasonable steps to notify CONTRACTOR in a 

timely fashion of any request made under the Public Records Act 

which will require disclosure of any records marked by CONTRACTOR 

as confidential or proprietary, so that CONTRACTOR may seek a 

judicial order of protection if necessary. 

 

  





EXHIBIT A







Exhibit B: Progress Reporting & Measures 
Partners for Early Learning  
330 Oahu Street  
Richland, WA 99352  
 

PROJECT SUMMARY 
REPORT DATE PROJECT NAME PREPARED BY 
 Building Resilience Through Family Support Karen Weakley, Project Lead 

 

STATUS SUMMARY 
 
 

 

MEASURABLES PROGRESS TO DATE 
Number of home visits completed per month (max. of 3 
per enrolled family) 

 

Amount of time, per visit, parent and child are engaged 
with READY! for Kindergarten activities. 

 

Number of families completing developmental 
screenings for their child using the Ages & Stages Tool 
to better understand child development expectations. 

 

Number of families completing the Ages & Stages SE 
(Social Emotional) to indicate areas of potential 
developmental need. 

 

Number of minutes per day that parents read to their 
young children as documented on a reading log. (target 
minimum 20 minutes) 

 

Number of families referred to community services by 
type (basic needs, health, mental health, education) 

 

Number of parents self-reporting increased feelings of 
competence in limit setting with children after 6 
months of enrollment. 

 

Number of parents self-reporting increased 
understanding of child development after 6 months of 
enrollment. 

 

Number of parents self-reporting increase in 
affirmations to their child after 6 months of enrollment. 

 

 

BUDGET OVERVIEW 
 TOTAL BUDGET INVOICED REMAINING BUDGET 

2017 Budget $44,860.00   

2018 Budget $33,412.00   

 

   

Signature  Date 
 



PERSONNEL EXPSENSES Requested 2017 In‐Kind 2017 Requested 2018 In‐Kind 2018 Requested Total Description

Independent Contractor 38,500.00          ‐                      38,500.00          ‐                      77,000.00          

Independent contractor paid at rate of $25/hour for up to 1540 hours per 

calendar year (includes use of personal telephone, automobile operation, 

personal computer).

Portable Background Check 60.00                  ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      60.00                  Includes fingerprinting. No additional cost in year 2

Child Abuse Prevention Training 250.00                ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      250.00                Estimated cost

Personnel Total 38,810.00        ‐                    38,500.00        ‐                    77,310.00       

OTHER EXPENSES Requested 2017 In‐Kind 2017 Requested 2018 In‐Kind 2018 Requested Total Description

Ready! For Kindergarten Materials 4,050.00             4,050.00             4,050.00             4,050.00             8,100.00            
$90 per child, per year x 45 children. In‐Kind represents 50% donation by 

Children's Reading Foundation

Consumables for Home Visits 1,800.00             ‐                      1,800.00             ‐                      3,600.00             45 children x $45 per child per year

Books for Children ‐                      1,350.00             ‐                      1,350.00             ‐                      450 books @ $3 per book, in‐kind from Mid‐Columbia Reading Foundation

Backpacks for Children ‐                      2,250.00             ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      Backpacks for 45 children @ $50 per backpack from PFEL

Parent Assessment Tool 200.00                ‐                      200.00                ‐                      400.00                Estimated cost ‐ Tool selection pending

Office Space ‐                      4,200.00             ‐                      4,200.00             ‐                     
In‐kind from Richland Schools ‐ includes internet, access to copy machine, 

$350 month x 12 months per year

Copying ‐                      450.00                ‐                      450.00                ‐                      In‐kind from Richland Schools ‐ $37.50 per month x 12 months per year

Other Expenses Total 6,050.00          12,300.00        6,050.00          10,050.00        12,100.00       

TOTAL REQUESTED BUDGET: 44,860.00 12,300.00 44,550.00 10,050.00 89,410.00

Percentage Approved 100% 75%

TOTAL APPROVED BUDGET: 44,860.00 12,300.00 33,412.50 10,050.00 78,272.50

EXHIBIT C: Budget Worksheet
Partners for Early Learning: Building Resilience Through Family Support 2017‐2018

Page 1 of 1



Exhibit C: Project Budget Description





 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: Jan 10, 2017 
Subject: Personal Service Agreement 

between Benton County and Tri-Cities 
Chaplaincy for Step-Up Program 

Prepared by: Shyanne Faulconer 
Reviewed by:  

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract        X 
Pass Resolution            X 
Pass Ordinance              
Pass Motion    
None    

 
 
 
Consent Agenda     X 
Public Hearing             
1st Discussion             
2nd Discussion             
Other              

 
SUMMARY 
Benton County would like to enter into a service agreement with Tri-Cities Chaplaincy (“Contractor”) for the Step-
Up Program.  
 
For the time period of January 1, 2017, through December 31, 2017, Contractor shall be compensated in the amount 
of fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000). For the time period of January 1, 2018, through December 31, 2018, Contractor 
shall be compensated in the amount of fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000), for a total contract amount not to exceed 
thirty thousand dollars ($30,000). 
 
Funding would support resources for 2 licensed therapists, 2 unlicensed assistants, training, outreach/community 
education, and supplies for the program. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
Tri-Cities Chaplaincy (Chaplaincy Health Care) applied for consideration in the RFP process that commenced on 
September 1, 2016 for contracts for 2017-2018. The Step-Up Program launched a pilot in early 2016, with success 
though they had some difficulty in getting participants for the program. After speaking with references (i.e. Juvenile 
Justice, Safe Harbor, and others) it was clear that this program was valuable, but needed to be run on a smaller scale 
than originally proposed by Chaplaincy. The goal is that $15,000 per year will give the organization time and 
resources to ensure that the program has a strong foundation before growing in number. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

 Sign the Resolution to accept proposed agreement 
 Approve proposed agreement by signing all copies where indicated 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Funding for the additional services as outlined in this amendment are provided by the Benton County Public Safety 
Tax. There is no impact on the current expense budget. All revenues and expenditures are from the Public Safety 
Tax Fund 0148-101. 
 

WEH
Text Box
dd. Agreement w/Tri-Cities Chaplaincy for Step-Up Program



cc: Auditor; PA-Contract Compliance; Tri-Cities Chaplaincy    Faulconer 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
IN THE MATTER OF SIGNING A PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON AND TRI-CITIES CHAPLAINCY FOR STEP-UP 
PROGRAM. 
 
WHEREAS, in August, 2014, the voters of Benton County approved Proposition 14-5, a 3/10 of 
one percent sales and use tax pursuant to RCW 82.14.450 to fund criminal justice and public safety 
programs in Benton County; and 
 
WHEREAS, funding decisions must fall within the parameters and guidance of the text of voter-
approve Proposition 14-5 where to “improve public safety and combat criminal gang activity and 

other crime by hiring additional police officers, corrections officers and prosecutors; continuing 

the Metro Drug Task Force; funding gang and crime prevention efforts; and funding court and 

clerk programs including a seventh Superior Court Judge; and drug and mental health courts”; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, funding gang and crime prevention efforts, the Benton County Gang and Crime 
Prevention and Intervention Initiative is to improve the quality of life for the residents of Benton 
County by reducing the incidence of gang-related and other crime in Benton County; and 
 
WHEREAS, on April 12, 2016 the Benton County Board of Commissioners approved funding 
for gang and crime prevention efforts, utilizing an Request for Proposal process; and 
 
WHEREAS, Tri-Cities Chaplaincy has proposed a Step-Up Program in the total 2017-2018 
biennial amount of thirty thousand dollars ($30,000); and 
 
WHEREAS, for the time period of January 1, 2017, through December 31, 2017, CONTRACTOR 
shall be compensated by COUNTY in an amount not to exceed fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000). 
For the time period of January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2018, CONTRACTOR shall be 
compensated in the amount not to exceed fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000); NOW, 
THEREFORE 
 
  



cc: Auditor; PA-Contract Compliance; Tri-Cities Chaplaincy    Faulconer 

BE IT RESOLVED the amount of $30,000, the 2017-2018 biennial budgeted amount, has been 
approved by the Board of Benton County Commissioners; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED each monthly payment will be made payable to Tri-Cities 
Chaplaincy. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, this agreement will start January 1, 2017. 
 
 
Dated this . . . . . . . day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 20 . . . .  
 
 

       
Chairman of the Board  

 
       

Chairman Pro-Tem 
 

                
Member 

 
Attest:…………………………….. 
               Clerk of the Board      Constituting the Board of County  

Commissioners of Benton County, Washington 
                   
 
 
 
  



 

 

- 1 - 

BENTON COUNTY 

PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACT 

 TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

THIS CONTRACT is made and entered into by and between BENTON 

COUNTY, a political subdivision, with its principal offices at 620 

Market Street, Prosser, WA 99350 (hereinafter "COUNTY"), and Tri-

Cities Chaplaincy, a non-profit corporation with its principal 

offices at 1480 Fowler Street, Richland, WA 99352, (hereinafter 

"CONTRACTOR"). 

 

In consideration of the mutual benefits and covenants contained 

herein, the parties agree as follows: 

 

1. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

 

This Contract consists of the following documents: 

 

a. Terms and Conditions (this document); 

b. Exhibit A, Statement of Work; 

c. Exhibit B, Measureable Goals of the Program; and 

d. Exhibit C, Budget Explanation.  

 

 

2. DURATION OF CONTRACT 

 

The term of this Contract shall begin January 1, 2017, and shall 

expire on December 31, 2018. The CONTRACTOR shall complete all 

services by the time(s) specified herein, or if no such time is 

otherwise specified, no later than the expiration date. 

 

3. SERVICES PROVIDED 

 

The CONTRACTOR shall perform the following services: 

 

a. A detailed description of the services to be performed by the 

CONTRACTOR is set forth in Exhibit "A, Statement of Work", 

which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by 

reference. 

 

b. The CONTRACTOR agrees to provide its own labor and materials. 

Unless otherwise provided in this Contract, no material, 

labor, or facilities will be furnished by the COUNTY. 

 

c. The CONTRACTOR shall confer with the COUNTY during the 

progress of the services performed. The CONTRACTOR shall 

prepare and deliver monthly status reports in the form of 



 

 

- 2 - 

Exhibit B demonstrating services completed to date. 

 

4. CONTRACT REPRESENTATIVES 

 

Each party to this Contract shall have a Contract representative. 

Each party may change its representative upon providing written 

notice to the other party. The parties' representatives are as 

follows: 

 

a. For CONTRACTOR: 

 

Tom Adams 

 1480 Fowler Street 

 Richland, WA 99352 

Phone: (509)783-7417 

  (509)783-7416 

  (818)640-1261 

Email: toma@chaplaincyhealthcare.org  

 

b. For COUNTY: 

 

Shyanne Faulconer 

PO Box 190 

Prosser, WA 99350 

Phone: (509)786-3760 

Email: Shyanne.Faulconer@co.benton.wa.us  

 

5. COMPENSATION 

 

For the services performed hereunder, the CONTRACTOR shall be paid 

as follows: 

 

a. A detailed description of compensation to be paid by the 

COUNTY for the services set forth in Exhibit A is set forth 

in Exhibit C, “Project Budget” which is attached hereto and 

incorporated herein by reference.  Accordingly, for the time 

period of January 1, 2017, through December 31, 2017, 

CONTRACTOR shall be compensated by COUNTY a total amount not 

to exceed fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000.00). For the time 

period of January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2018, 

CONTRACTOR shall be compensated a total amount not to exceed 

fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000.00).  

 

b. No payment shall be made for any services performed by the 

CONTRACTOR, except for services identified and set forth in 

this Contract. 

 

mailto:toma@chaplaincyhealthcare.org
mailto:Shyanne.Faulconer@co.benton.wa.us


 

 

- 3 - 

c. The CONTRACTOR may submit invoices to the COUNTY not more 

than once per month during the progress of the services 

performed for partial payment of the services completed to 

date. The COUNTY shall pay the CONTRACTOR in the month 

following the actual delivery of services and will remit 

payment within thirty (30) days from the date of receipt. 

 

d. The CONTRACTOR shall not be paid for services rendered under 

this Contract unless and until they have been performed to 

the satisfaction of the COUNTY. 

 

e. In the event the CONTRACTOR has failed to perform any 

substantial obligation to be performed by the CONTRACTOR 

under this Contract and such failure has not been cured within 

ten (10) days following notice from the COUNTY, the COUNTY 

may, in its sole discretion, upon written notice to the 

CONTRACTOR, withhold any and all monies due and payable to 

the CONTRACTOR, without penalty, until such failure to 

perform is cured or otherwise adjudicated. "Substantial" for 

the purposes of this Contract means faithfully fulfilling the 

terms of this Contract with variances only for technical or 

minor omissions or defects. 

 

f. Unless otherwise provided in this Contract or any exhibits or 

attachments hereto, the CONTRACTOR will not be paid for any 

billings or invoices presented for services rendered prior to 

the execution of this Contract or after its termination. 

 

6. AMENDMENTS 

 

No amendment or modification shall be made to this 

Contract, unless set forth in a written Contract Amendment 

signed by both parties. Services performed under a Contract 

Amendment shall not proceed until the Contract Amendment is 

duly executed by the COUNTY. 

 

7. HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFICATION 

 

a. The CONTRACTOR shall hold harmless, indemnify and defend the 

COUNTY, its officers, officials, employees and agents, from 

and against any and all claims, actions, suits, liability, 

loss, expenses, damages, and judgments of any nature 

whatsoever, including reasonable costs and attorneys' fees in 

defense thereof, for injury, sickness, disability or death to 

persons or damage to property or business, which are caused 

in whole or in part by any act or omission, negligent or 

otherwise, of CONTRACTOR or its subcontractors, which arise 



 

 

- 4 - 

in connection with the services performed under this 

Contract, or are caused or occasioned in whole or in part by 

reason of the presence of the CONTRACTOR or its subcontractors 

or their property upon or in the proximity of the property of 

the County. PROVIDED, that the CONTRACTOR'S obligation 

hereunder shall not extend to injury, sickness, death or 

damage caused by or arising out of the sole negligence of the 

COUNTY, its officers, officials, employees or agents. 

 

b. In any and all claims against the COUNTY, its officers, 

officials, employees and agents by any employee of the 

CONTRACTOR, subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly 

employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts any of them 

may be liable, the indemnification obligation under this 

Section shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on 

the amount or type of damages, compensation, or benefits 

payable by or for the CONTRACTOR or subcontractor under 

Workers Compensation acts, disability benefit acts, or other 

employee benefit acts, it being clearly agreed and understood 

by the parties hereto that the CONTRACTOR expressly waives 

any immunity the CONTRACTOR might have had under such laws, 

including but not limited to Title 51 of the Revised Code of 

Washington. By executing this Contract, the CONTRACTOR 

acknowledges that the foregoing waiver has been mutually 

negotiated by the parties and that the provisions of this 

Section shall be incorporated, as relevant, into any contract 

the CONTRACTOR makes with any subcontractor or agent 

performing services hereunder. CONTRACTOR’S obligations under 

this Section [7] shall survive termination and expiration of 

this Contract. 

 

c. The CONTRACTOR'S obligations hereunder shall include, but are 

not limited to, investigating, adjusting and defending all 

claims alleging loss from action, error or omission, or breach 

of any common law, statutory or other delegated duty by the 

CONTRACTOR, the CONTRACTOR'S employees, agents or 

subcontractors. 

 

8. INSURANCE 

 

a. Workers Compensation: CONTRACTOR shall comply with all State 

of Washington workers compensation statutes and regulations. 

Prior to the start of work under this Contract, workers 

compensation coverage shall be provided for all employees of 

CONTRACTOR and employees of any subcontractor or sub-

subcontractor. Coverage shall include bodily injury 

(including death) by accident or disease, which arises out of 



 

 

- 5 - 

or in connection with the performance of this Contract. 

CONTRACTOR shall submit a copy of its certificate of coverage 

from the Department of Labor and Industries prior to 

commencement of work. Except as prohibited by law, CONTRACTOR 

waives all rights of subrogation against the COUNTY for 

recovery of damages to the extent they are covered by workers 

compensation and employers liability. 

 

If CONTRACTOR, subcontractor, or sub-subcontractor fails to 

comply with all State of Washington workers compensation 

statutes and regulations and COUNTY incurs fines or is 

required by law to provide benefits to or obtain coverage for 

such employees, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify the COUNTY. 

Indemnity shall include all fines, payment of benefits to 

CONTRACTOR or subcontractor employees, or their heirs or 

legal representatives, and the cost of effecting coverage on 

behalf of such employees. Any amount owed to COUNTY by 

CONTRACTOR pursuant to the indemnity agreement may be 

deducted from any payments owed by COUNTY to CONTRACTOR for 

performance of this Contract. 

 

b. Commercial General Liability and Employers Liability 

Insurance: Prior to the start of work under this Contract, 

CONTRACTOR shall maintain commercial general liability 

coverage (policy form CG0001 or equivalent) to protect the 

CONTRACTOR from claims for wrongful death, bodily injury, 

personal injury and property damage, which may arise from any 

actions or inactions under this Contract by CONTRACTOR or by 

anyone directly employed by or contracting with CONTRACTOR. 

The minimum commercial general liability insurance limits 

shall be as follows: 

 

$2,000,000 General Aggregate 

$2,000,000 Products/Completed Operations Aggregate 

$1,000,000 Personal Injury and Advertising Injury 

$1,000,000 Each Occurrence 

 

The commercial general liability policy will contain an 

endorsement naming the COUNTY, its elected and appointed 

officials, employees and agents as an Additional Insured and 

an endorsement that specifically states that CONTRACTOR’s 

commercial general liability policy shall be primary, and not 

contributory, with any other insurance maintained by the 

COUNTY. 

 

The CONTRACTOR will provide commercial general liability 

coverage that does not exclude any activity to be performed 



 

 

- 6 - 

in fulfillment of this Contract and does not exclude liability 

pursuant to the indemnification requirement under Section 

[7]. CONTRACTOR'S commercial general liability policy shall 

provide cross liability coverage, indicating essentially that 

except with respect to the limits of insurance and any rights 

or duties specifically assigned in this coverage part to the 

first named insured, this insurance applies as if each named 

insured were the only named insured, and separately to each 

insured against whom claims are made or suit is brought. 

 

CONTRACTOR shall also provide Stop Gap Employer's Liability 

Insurance coverage with minimum limits as follows: 

 

$1,000,000 Each Accident 

$1,000,000 Policy Limit for Disease 

$1,000,000 Each Employee for Disease 

 

c. Automobile Liability: The CONTRACTOR shall maintain, during 

the life of this Contract, Automobile Liability Insurance 

(ISO Form Number CA0001 or equivalent) covering any auto 

(Symbol 1), or if the Contractor has no owned autos, hired 

(Symbol 8) and non-owned autos (Symbol 9), in the amount of 

not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) per accident 

for Bodily Injury and Property Damage to protect CONTRACTOR 

from claims which may arise from the performance of this 

Contract, whether such operations be by the CONTRACTOR or by 

anyone directly or indirectly employed by the CONTRACTOR. 

 

 

d. Other Insurance Provisions: 

 

1. The CONTRACTOR'S liability insurance provisions shall be 
primary with respect to any insurance or self-insurance 

programs covering the COUNTY, its elected and appointed 

officers, officials, employees and agents. CONTRACTOR’S 

liability insurance policies must be endorsed to show this 

primary coverage. Any insurance, self-insured retention, 

deductible or risk retention maintained or participated 

in by the COUNTY shall be excess and not contributory to 

CONTRACTOR’S insurance policies. 

 

2. The CONTRACTOR'S liability insurance policies shall 

contain no special limitations on the scope of protection 

afforded to the COUNTY as an additional insured. 

 

3. Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the 
policies shall not affect coverage provided to the COUNTY, 



 

 

- 7 - 

its officers, officials, employees or agents. 

 

4. The CONTRACTOR'S insurance shall apply separately to each 
insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, 

except with respect to the limits of the insurer's 

liability. 

 

5. The CONTRACTOR shall include all subcontractors as 

insureds under its policies or shall furnish separate 

certificates and endorsements for each subcontractor. All 

coverage for subcontractors shall be subject to all of the 

requirements stated herein. 

 

6. The insurance limits mandated for any insurance coverage 
required by this Contract are not intended to be an 

indication of exposure nor are they limitations on 

indemnification. If the CONTRACTOR maintains higher limits 

than the minimums required in this contract, the COUNTY 

shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits 

maintained by the CONTRACTOR. 

 

7. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain all required policies in 
force from the time services commence until services are 

completed. Certificates, policies, and endorsements 

expiring before completion of services shall be promptly 

replaced. All liability insurance required under this 

Contract, shall be written on an Occurrence Policy form.  

 

8. CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to waive subrogation with respect 
to each insurance policy maintained under this Contract. 

When required by an insurer, or if a policy condition does 

not permit CONTRACTOR to enter into a pre-loss agreement 

to waive subrogation without an endorsement, then 

CONTRACTOR agrees to notify the insurer and obtain such 

endorsement. This requirement shall not apply to any 

policy which includes a condition expressly prohibiting 

waiver of subrogation by the insured or which voids 

coverage should the CONTRACTOR enter into such a waiver 

of subrogation on a pre-loss basis.  

 

9. Compensation and/or payments due to CONTRACTOR under this 
Agreement are expressly conditioned upon CONTRACTOR’S 

strict compliance with all insurance requirements. Payment 

to CONTRACTOR may be suspended in the event of non-

compliance. Upon receipt of evidence of CONTRACTOR’S 

compliance, such payments not otherwise subject to 

withholding or set-off will be released to CONTRACTOR. 



 

 

- 8 - 

 

e. Verification of Coverage and Acceptability of Insurers: 

 

All insurance required under this Contract shall be issued by 

companies authorized to do business under the laws of the 

State of Washington and have a A. M. Best's rating of at least 

A-VII or better in the most recently published edition of 

Best’s Reports. Any exception to this requirement must be 

reviewed and approved in writing by the Benton County Risk 

Manager. If an insurer is not admitted to do business within 

Washington State, all insurance policies and procedures for 

issuing the insurance policy must comply with Chapter 48.15 

RCW and 284-15 WAC. 

  

1. All insurance to be maintained by the CONTRACTOR, other 
than Auto Liability and Workmen’s Compensation, shall 

specifically include the COUNTY, its elected officials, 

employees and volunteers as an “Additional Insured” by way 

of endorsement and shall not be reduced or canceled without 

thirty (30) days written prior notice to the COUNTY. Any 

insurance or self-insurance maintained by the COUNTY, its 

elected and appointed officials, employees and agents 

shall be excess of the CONTRACTOR’s insurance and shall 

not contribute to it. 

 

2. Certificates of Liability Insurance, with endorsements 

attached, are to be provided to the County’s Contract 

Representative referenced in Section 4. 

 

3. All written notices under this Section [8] and notice of 
cancellation or change of required insurance coverages 

shall be mailed to the COUNTY’s Contract Representative 

referenced in Section 4. 

 

4. The CONTRACTOR or its broker shall provide a copy of any 
and all insurance policies specified in this Contract upon 

request of the Benton County Risk Manager at the following 

address: Benton County Risk Manager, 7122 W. Okanogan 

Place, Bldg. A, Kennewick, WA 99336. 

 

9. TERMINATION 

 

a. The COUNTY may terminate this Contract in whole or in part 

whenever the COUNTY determines, in its sole discretion, that 

such termination is in the best interests of the COUNTY. The 

COUNTY may terminate this Contract upon giving ten (10) days 

written notice by certified mail to the CONTRACTOR. In that 



 

 

- 9 - 

event, the COUNTY shall pay the CONTRACTOR for all cost 

incurred by the CONTRACTOR in performing the Contract up to 

the date of such notice. Payment shall be made in accordance 

with the Compensation Section of this Contract. 

 

b. In the event that funding for this project is withdrawn, 

reduced or limited in any way after the effective date of 

this Contract, the COUNTY may summarily terminate this 

Contract notwithstanding any other termination provision in 

this Contract. Termination under this paragraph shall be 

effective upon the date specified in the written notice of 

termination sent by COUNTY to the CONTRACTOR. After the 

effective date, no charges incurred under this Contract shall 

be allowed. 

 

c. If the CONTRACTOR breaches any of its obligations hereunder, 

and fails to cure the breach within ten (10) days of written 

notice to do so by the COUNTY, the COUNTY may immediately 

terminate this Contract by so notifying the CONTRACTOR, in 

which case the COUNTY shall pay the CONTRACTOR only for the 

costs of services accepted by the COUNTY, in accordance with 

the Compensation Section of this Contract.  

 

10. ASSIGNMENT, DELEGATION AND SUBCONTRACTING 

 

a. The CONTRACTOR shall perform the terms of this Contract using 

only its bona fide employees or agents, and the obligations 

and duties of the CONTRACTOR under this Contract shall not be 

assigned, delegated, or subcontracted to any other person or 

firm without the prior express written consent of the COUNTY. 

 

b. The CONTRACTOR warrants that it has not paid nor has it agreed 

to pay any company, person, partnership, or firm, other than 

a bona fide employee working exclusively for CONTRACTOR, any 

fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or other 

consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or 

making of this Contract. 

 

11. NON-WAIVER OF RIGHTS 

 

The parties agree that the excuse or forgiveness of performance, 

or waiver of any provision(s) of this Contract does not constitute 

a waiver of such provision(s) or future performance, or prejudice 

the right of the waiving party to enforce any of the provisions of 

this Contract at a later time. All waivers of any provision(s) of 

this Contract shall be in writing and in the absence of such, no 

action or inaction shall be construed to be such a waiver. 



 

 

- 10 - 

 

12. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

 

a. The CONTRACTOR'S services shall be furnished by the 

CONTRACTOR as an independent contractor and not as an agent, 

employee or servant of the COUNTY. The CONTRACTOR 

specifically has the right to direct and control CONTRACTOR'S 

own activities in providing the agreed services in accordance 

with the specifications set out in this Contract. 

 

b. The CONTRACTOR acknowledges that the entire compensation for 

this Contract is set forth in Section [5] of this Contract, 

and neither the CONTRACTOR nor its employees are entitled to 

any COUNTY benefits, including, but not limited to: vacation 

pay, holiday pay, sick leave pay, medical, dental, or other 

insurance benefits, fringe benefits, or any other rights or 

privileges afforded to COUNTY employees. 

 

c. The CONTRACTOR shall have and maintain complete 

responsibility and control over all of its subcontractors, 

employees, agents, and representatives. No subcontractor, 

employee, agent, or representative of the CONTRACTOR shall be 

or deem to be or act or purport to act as an employee, agent, 

or representative of the COUNTY. 

 

d. CONTRACTOR shall pay for all taxes, fees, licenses, or 

payments required by federal, state or local law which are 

now or may be enacted during the term of this Contract. 

 

e. The CONTRACTOR agrees to immediately remove any of its 

employees or agents from their assignment to perform services 

under this Contract upon receipt of a written request to do 

so from the COUNTY'S contract representative or designee. 

 

13. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 

 

The CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable federal, state and 

local laws, rules and regulations in performing this Contract. 

 

14. INSPECTION OF BOOKS AND RECORDS 

 

The COUNTY may, at reasonable times, inspect the books and records 

of the CONTRACTOR relating to the performance of this Contract. 

The CONTRACTOR shall keep, and make available to the County upon 

request, all records relating to the performance of this Contract 

for six (6) years after Contract termination or expiration. 

 



 

 

- 11 - 

15. NONDISCRIMINATION 

 

The CONTRACTOR, its assignees, delegates, or subcontractors shall 

not discriminate against any person in the performance of any of 

its obligations hereunder on the basis of age, sex, marital status, 

sexual orientation, race, creed, religion, color, national origin, 

honorably discharged veteran or military status, disability, or 

any other protected status. 

 

16. OWNERSHIP OF MATERIALS/WORKS PRODUCED 

 

a. All reports, drawings, plans, specifications, all forms of 

electronic media, and data and documents produced in the 

performance of the work under this Contract shall be "works 

for hire" as defined by the U.S. Copyright Act of 1976 and 

shall be owned by the COUNTY. Ownership includes the right to 

copyright, patent, register, and the ability to transfer 

these rights. The COUNTY agrees that if it uses any materials 

prepared by the CONTRACTOR for purposes other than those 

intended by this Contract, it does so at its sole risk and it 

agrees to hold the CONTRACTOR harmless there from to the 

extent such use is not agreed to in writing by the CONTRACTOR. 

 

b. An electronic copy of all word processing documents shall be 

submitted to the COUNTY upon request or at the end of the job 

using the word processing program and version specified by 

the COUNTY. 

 

17. PATENT/COPYRIGHT INFRINGEMENT 

 

The CONTRACTOR shall hold harmless, indemnify and defend the 

COUNTY, its officers, officials, employees and agents, from and 

against any claimed action, cause or demand brought against the 

COUNTY, where such action is based on the claim that information 

supplied by the CONTRACTOR or subcontractor infringes any patent 

or copyright. The CONTRACTOR shall be notified promptly in writing 

by the COUNTY of any notice of such claim. 

 

18. DISPUTES 

 

Disputes between the CONTRACTOR and the COUNTY, arising under and 

by virtue of this Contract, shall be brought to the attention of 

the COUNTY at the earliest possible time in order that such matters 

may be settled or other appropriate action promptly taken. Any 

dispute relating to the quality or acceptability of performance 

and/or compensation due the CONTRACTOR shall be decided by the 

COUNTY'S Contract Representative or designee. All rulings, orders, 



 

 

- 12 - 

instructions and decisions of the COUNTY'S Contract Representative 

shall be final and conclusive, subject to CONTRACTOR'S right to 

seek judicial relief. 

 

19. CONFIDENTIALITY 

 

The CONTRACTOR, its employees, subcontractors, and their employees 

shall maintain the confidentiality of all information provided by 

the COUNTY or acquired by the COUNTY in performance of this 

Contract, except upon the prior written consent of the COUNTY or 

an order entered by a court of competent jurisdiction. The 

CONTRACTOR shall promptly give the COUNTY written notice of any 

judicial proceeding seeking disclosure of such information. 

 

20. CHOICE OF LAW, JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

 

a. This Contract has been and shall be construed as having been 

made and delivered within the State of Washington, and it is 

agreed by each party hereto that this Contract shall be 

governed by the laws of the State of Washington, both as to 

its interpretation and performance. 

 

b. Any action at law, suit in equity, or judicial proceeding 

arising out of this Contract shall be instituted and 

maintained only in any of the courts of competent jurisdiction 

in Benton County, Washington. 

 

21. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

 

The COUNTY, to the extent permitted by law, and the CONTRACTOR 

each bind themselves, their partners, successors, executors, 

administrators, and assigns to the other party to this Contract 

and to the partners, successors, administrators, and assigns of 

such other party in respect to all covenants to this Contract. 

 

22. SEVERABILITY 

 

a. If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any part, term or 

provision of this Contract to be illegal, or invalid in whole 

or in part, the validity of the remaining provisions shall 

not be affected, and the parties' rights and obligations shall 

be construed and enforced as if this Contract did not contain 

the particular provision held to be invalid. 

 

b. If it should appear that any provision of this Contract is in 
conflict with any statutory provision of the State of 

Washington, said provision which may conflict therewith shall 



 

 

- 13 - 

be deemed inoperative and null and void insofar as it may be 

in conflict therewith, and shall be deemed modified to conform 

to such statutory provision. 

 

23. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

 

The parties agree that this Contract is the complete expression of 

its terms and conditions. Any oral or written representations or 

understandings not incorporated in this Contract are specifically 

excluded. 

 

24. NOTICES 

 

Any notices shall be effective if personally served upon the other 

party or if mailed by registered or certified mail, return receipt 

requested, to the addresses set out in the Contract Representatives 

Section of this Contract. Notice may also be given by facsimile 

with the original to follow by regular mail. Notice shall be deemed 

to be given three days following the date of mailing or 

immediately, if personally served. For service by facsimile, 

service shall be effective at the beginning of the next working 

day. 

 

25. SURVIVABILITY 

 

All Contract terms, which by their context are clearly intended to 

survive the termination and/or expiration of this Contract, shall 

so survive. These terms include, but are not limited to, 

indemnification provisions (Sections [7] and [17]); inspection and 

keeping of records and books (Section [14]); litigation hold notice 

(Section [26]); Public Records Act (Section [27]) and 

confidentiality (Section [19]). 

 

26. LITIGATION HOLD NOTICE 

 

In the event the COUNTY learns of circumstances leading to an 

increased likelihood of litigation regarding any matter where the 

records kept by CONTRACTOR pursuant to Section [14] of this 

agreement may be of evidentiary value, the COUNTY may issue written 

notice to CONTRACTOR of such circumstances and direct the 

CONTRACTOR to “hold” such records. In the event that CONTRACTOR 

receives such written notice, CONTRACTOR shall abide by all 

directions therein whether or not such written notice is received 

at a time when a Contract between CONTRACTOR and the COUNTY is in 

force. Such directions will include, but will not be limited to, 

instructions to suspend the six (6) year purge schedule as set out 

above in Section [14]. 



 

 

- 14 - 

 

27. PUBLIC RECORDS ACT 

 

CONTRACTOR hereby acknowledges that the COUNTY is a governmental 

entity and as such is subject to the requirements of the Public 

Records Act, RCW 42.56 et seq. Accordingly, CONTRACTOR understands 

that to the extent a proper request is made, the COUNTY may be 

required by virtue of that Act to disclose any records related to 

this Contract actually in its possession or in CONTRACTOR’S 

possession. This may include records that CONTRACTOR might regard 

as confidential or proprietary. To the extent that CONTRACTOR 

provides any records to the COUNTY that it regards as confidential 

or proprietary, it agrees to conspicuously mark the records as 

such. CONTRACTOR also hereby waives any and all claims or causes 

of action for any injury it may suffer by virtue of COUNTY’S 

release of records covered under the Public Records Act. COUNTY 

agrees to take all reasonable steps to notify CONTRACTOR in a 

timely fashion of any request made under the Public Records Act 

which will require disclosure of any records marked by CONTRACTOR 

as confidential or proprietary, so that CONTRACTOR may seek a 

judicial order of protection if necessary. 

 

  





2108 W. ENTIAT AVE.  | KENNEWICK, WA 99336 |  (509) 783-7417  |  CHAPLAINCYHEALTHCARE.ORG  

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
December 7, 2016 

 

 
Exhibit A: Statement of Work 

 

The Step-Up program will be organized into two, 11-week units for a total of 22 group 
sessions provided for the first year. The first 11-week unit will begin March 7, 2017, 
meeting weekly for 11 weeks and ending May 16, 2017. The second 11-week unit will 
begin May 21, and end August 1. Recruitment and outreach will begin January 2. Intake 
assessments, conducted separately from the program sessions, will be provided weekly 
beginning in January and ending May 21 when the second unit begins. 

 

Each unit will serve 12-18 youths and their parents. Referrals will come from Juvenile 
Justice Center, other community agencies, mental health providers and other community 
groups that provide youth services. The ages of the adolescents served are 12 to 17 years 
of age. 

 

  



2108 W. ENTIAT AVE.  | KENNEWICK, WA 99336 |  (509) 783-7417  |  CHAPLAINCYHEALTHCARE.ORG  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Exhibit B: Measurable Goals of the Program 

 

Below are the goals by which we propose to measure the success of the Benton County 
Step-Up program. Follow-up surveys would be performed at the two-month mark to 
measure sustained progress, along with phone calls. We would submit these outcomes to 
the review committee to demonstrate effectiveness. Also attached are the internal 
measures that create expectations for teens and parents. These are used with participants 
in the program. 

 

 
Target behavior Measurable Goal Outcome 

Number of new registered youth 
participants 

24 – 36 newly registered 
participants in 2017 

 

Number of youth and families 
served 

24 – 36 youth and 24 - 36 
family members served in 2017 

 

Number of Step-Up Intake 
Assessments Completed 

24 – 36 Completed assessments 
with appropriate referrals made 

 

Incidents of defiance and 
disrespect for family members at 
home. 

Reduced from daily to one/week 
or less as reported by parents. 

 

Incidents of police involvement. Reduced from weekly to 0 in 2 
month follow up for those youth 
completing an 11-week program 

 

Incidents of truancy, running 
away, breaking curfew. 

Reduced from weekly to 0 in 2 
month follow up for those youth 
completing an 11-week program 

 

Gang activity, association and/or 
interaction 

Reduced from weekly to 0 in 2 
month follow up for those youth 
completing an 11-week program 

 

Incidents of incarceration 0 incidents of incarceration in 2 
month follow up for those youth 
completing an 11-week program 

 



2108 W. ENTIAT AVE.  | KENNEWICK, WA 99336 |  (509) 783-7417  |  CHAPLAINCYHEALTHCARE.ORG  

 

 
Exhibit C: Budget Explanation 

The counseling program budget of Chaplaincy Behavioral Health is based on the hourly rate 
of Medicare reimbursement for a licensed therapist, $83.00. This covers the hourly cost of 
a licensed therapist (wage plus benefits) after contract adjustments and some allocated 
costs. We applied the same hourly rate to determine the therapist costs in the pilot Step- 
Up budget. All other hours for unlicensed assistants and administrative support were 
calculated at $25.00/hr. 

 

Proposed Budget – REVISION 4 
 

Program Costs 

 
 

 
Cost Per Unit 

(based on Medicare 
reimbursement rate $83.00) 1.5 hour prep  $125.00 

2 licensed therapists 2 hours service  $332.00   

Per Unit Cost $457.00 

 
2 unlicensed assistants 2 hours service  $100.00 

Total Unit 
Cost $557.00 

 

Total Cost/22 Units (22 
Units/year x $557.00) Total Unit Cost 

 
 
 

$12,254.00 

Allocated Costs 

Printing & Supplies 

 
 
 

 
75 manuals/170 pg ea 

 
 
 

12750 pages x .05 + $180 
binders) $818.00 

Brochures & mailings $450.00 

Total Printing Costs $1,268.00 
 

Community 
Outreach/Reports $1,478.00 

 
Total Per Year Cost $15,000.00 

 



WEH
Text Box
ee. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0114-101, Dept. 000







WEH
Text Box
ff. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0101-101, Dept. 500







 

 
 AGENDA ITEM 
Meeting Date:      Jan. 10, 2017  
Subject:              Shop Rate 
Prepared by:               gnd  
Reviewed by:               MSR  
 

 
 TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 
Execute Agreement               
Pass Resolution                   X  
Pass Ordinance             
Pass Motion                  
Other                          ___________ 

 
 
Consent Agenda               X  
Public Hearing             
1st Discussion                      
2nd Discussion              
Other                             

 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
The Benton County Road Department operates the Equipment Rental and Revolving (ERR) Fund, through which vehicles and 
equipment are purchased, maintained, and replaced. The Board of Benton County Commissioners adopted the current iteration 
of the ERR Fund policy in December 2016 (Res2016-1025). The Benton County Road Department has prepared the 2017 shop 
rate, to be used in billing hours for work done on equipment and vehicles. Per Res. 2016-1025, this rate must be adopted by 
the Board of Benton County Commissioners. 
 
 
SUMMARY 
 
The attached shop rate, as calculated by the Benton County Road Department, would be that used for determining equipment 
and vehicle maintenance costs for 2017. The rate must be adopted by the Board of Benton County Commissioners in order to 
go into effect. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The County Engineer recommends that the Board adopt the 2017 shop rate. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Adoption of the shop rate will not have any fiscal impact unto itself. It will be used by the Benton County Road Department 
for calculating maintenance costs for equipment and vehicles. 
 
 
MOTION 
 
Approve as part of the consent agenda. 

WEH
Text Box
gg. Adoption of Road Department Shop Rate



 

 
 

RESOLUTION 
 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
 
IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS, RE:  ADOPTION OF ROAD DEPARTMENT SHOP 
RATE 
 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Road Department operates the Equipment Rental and Revolving (ERR) 
Fund, through which vehicles and equipment are purchased, maintained, and replaced; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners adopted the current policy that governs the operation of 
the ERR Fund on December 13, 2016 (Res. 2016-1025); and 
 
WHEREAS, through said policy, the Road Department calculated a shop rate for the 2017 calendar year, 
which is used by the Road Department for consideration of the cost of equipment and vehicle maintenance; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, per said policy, the rate must be adopted by the Board of County Commissioners; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County Engineer recommends that the Board of County Commissioners adopt the 
proposed rate; NOW, THEREFORE, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of County Commissioners hereby adopts the proposed 2017 Road 
Department shop rates, per the ERR Fund policy. 
 
Dated this    10th    day of     January    , 2017 

       
                 

Chairman of the Board. 
      
 

      
                      Chairman Pro-Tem. 

      
 
                                    

                                      Member.   
 Attest:             Constituting the Board of County 
             Clerk of the Board                         Commissioners of Benton County, 
                                            Washington. 
      
Orig.:  Road Dept                     G. DeJongh 
 





WEH
Text Box
hh. Equipment Maintenance Agreement w/Benton County Fire District #6















WEH
Text Box
ii. Payment Authorization to D&D Tri-Rivers Excavating, Inc. for Kennewick Parking Lot





WEH
Text Box
jj. Speed Limit Traffic Control on Certain County Roads























WEH
Text Box
kk. Salary Request Statement



WEH
Text Box
ll. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 121 to Dept. 120





WEH
Text Box
mm. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 125





WEH
Text Box
nn. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0116-101, Dept. 000





WEH
Text Box
oo. Appointments to the Hanford Advisory Board





AGENDA ITEM 
Meeting Date:  10 Jan 2017 
Subject:  BCEDC Briefing 
Memo Date:  03 Jan 2017 
Prepared By:  AJF 
Reviewed By:   

ACTION NEEDED 
Execute Contract  
Pass Resolution  
Pass Ordinance  
Pass Motion  
None   X 

DISCUSSION TYPE 
Consent Agenda  
Public Hearing  
1st Discussion X 
2nd Discussion  
Other    

 
 
SUMMARY & BACKGROUND 
 
Representatives from the Benton City Economic Development Council will give a periodic update to the Board 
about their activities and achievements.  
 
 

# # # 

WEH
Text Box
Benton City Economic Development Update ~ A. Fyall & B. Baker



WEH
Text Box
Yakima Basin Water Legislation Discussion ~ A. Fyall, D. Olsen & M. Neilson































AGENDA ITEM     
MTG. DATE: January 10, 2017 
SUBJECT: Final Plat of Beverly 
Meadows Phase 2- SUB 2016-006 
MEMO DATE: January 3, 2017 

Prepared By: Donna Hutchinson 
Reviewed by: Jerrod MacPherson 

TYPE OF ACTION 
NEEDED 
Execute Contract  
Pass Resolution X 
Pass Ordinance  
Pass Motion X 
Other    

Consent Agenda  
Public Meeting X 
1st Discussion  
2nd Discussion  
Other    

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
On December 16, 2014, the Benton County Board of Commissioners approved the 
preliminary plat of Beverly Meadows, SUB 2014-002 which proposed to have 56 lots on an 
18.5 acre parcel.  Beverly Meadows Phase 1 was recorded in January of 2016.  Phase 2 of 
Beverly Meadows consists of 27 residential lots and is being submitted to the Board for final 
plat approval as all of the conditions of preliminary plat approval have been satisfied.  
 
SUMMARY 
All the conditions of approval have been satisfied and all signatures have been obtained.  
The Final Plat of Beverly Meadows Phase 2 is ready for signature by the Chairman of the 
Board of County Commissioners. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
It is the recommendation of the Benton County Planning Department that the Final Plat of 
of Beverly Meadows Phase 2 – SUB 2016-006 be approved and the Board of County 
Commissioners approve the attached resolution authorizing the chairman to sign the final 
plat. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
Maintenance of new county roads. 
 
MOTION  
The Board of County Commissioners should make a motion approving the Final Plat of 
Beverly Meadows Phase 2, SUB 2016-006 and the Chairman so indicate by signing the final 
plat. 
 

WEH
Text Box
Final Plat of Beverly Meadows Phase 2 – SUB 2016-006 ~ C. Posey



 
RESOLUTION 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY PLANNING RE: THE FINAL PLAT OF BEVERLY MEADOWS 
PHASE 2-SUB 2016-006.  
 
WHEREAS, on December 16, 2014, the Board of County Commissioners approved the 
preliminary plat of Beverly Meadows - SUB 2014-002; and  
 
WHEREAS, on January 10, 2017, in the Commissioners Meeting Room, third floor, 
Courthouse, Prosser, Washington at a public meeting, the Board of County Commissioners 
considered the final plat of Beverly Meadows Phase 2 - SUB 2016-006, and, 
 
WHEREAS, the applicant for final plat approval has completed all the required conditions of 
approval for the proposed final plat of Beverly Meadows Phase 2 - SUB 2016-006 and has 
obtained all required signatures; and 
 
WHEREAS, it appears to be in the publics best interest to approve said final plat of Beverly 
Meadows Phase 2 - SUB 2016-006; NOW THEREFORE, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Final Plat of Beverly Meadows Phase 2 - SUB 2016-006 is 
approved and the Chairman so indicate by signing the plat. 
 
 
Dated this 10th day of January 2017. 
 
 

______________________________ 
 Chairman of the Board 
 
______________________________ 

 Member 
 
_______________________________ 
 Member 
 

Constituting the Board of County 
 Commissioners of Benton County 

Washington. 
Attest....................................................... 

Clerk of the Board JBP/djh 






	Timed - 3 Beaverly Meadows.pdf
	AGENDA ITEM    
	Prepared By: Donna Hutchinson
	Other   
	Consent Agenda 

	SUMMARY
	RECOMMENDATION




